
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN
THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2013 - 10:00 A.M.
 R E V I S E D

           

1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A Public recognition of one employee for April's"Spotlight on Employees" Program,
as follows: Tom Homan. (Juley Bocardo-Homan) 

 

B Presentation of Gila Community College's 2013-2014 fiscal year budget request
to be considered for approval during Gila County's regular budget
process.  (Larry Stephenson)

 

C Presentation of the University of Arizona's Gila County Cooperative Extension
Office Annual Report and 2013-2014 fiscal year budget request to be
considered for approval during Gila County's regular budget process. 
(Jim Sprinkle)

 

3 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A Information/Discussion/Action to approve a temporary decrease in the cost of
wastewater certification classes from $100 to $50 for the year ending December
31, 2013. (Bob Gould)

 

B Information/Discussion/Action to approve Funding Agreement No. 309-13
between the Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) and Gila County
Community Action/Housing Services, whereby ADOH will provide funding in
the amount of $440,000 to be used to provide owner occupied housing
rehabilitation to eligible residents residing in Gila County effective on the date
of execution by ADOH through April 15, 2015.  (Malissa Buzan)

 

C Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 13-05-01, which
declares continued support to maintain the projects described in the Arizona
Department of Transportation's 2014-2018 Five-Year Transportation Facilities
Construction Program as reconstruction and lane additions to U.S. 60, the
Silver King and Superior Street sections, to begin no later than FY 2015. (Steve
Stratton)

 

D Information/Discussion/Action to authorize Public Works to move forward in

  

  



D Information/Discussion/Action to authorize Public Works to move forward in
working on an agreement with the Arizona Department of Transportation
(ADOT) with regard to a cash match requirement in the amount of $2.4
million utilizing the County's Half-Cent Transportation Excise Fund for a $40
million grant application that ADOT has submitted to the Federal Highway
Administration in order for ADOT to design and build the Lion Springs project.  
(Steve Stratton)

 

E Information/Discussion/Action pursuant to A.R.S. §11-254.04 to find that to
assist in annual yearling auction/sale is an economic development activity
because it will assist in the creation or retention of jobs or will otherwise
improve or enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County,
and to authorize Public Works to supply requested equipment with Gila County
operators for the Gila County Cattle Growers Association's annual yearling
auction/sale.  (Steve Stratton)

 

F Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Small Government Enterprise
License Agreement with Environmental Systems Research Institute. 
(Steve Sanders)

 

G Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for
Bids No. 118012-1 Re-Bid for the purchase of chips, ABC, and asphalt for the
Copper Region; award the chips and ABC portion of Invitation for Bids No.
110812-1 Re-Bid to the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize
the Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning bidder. (Dana
Hlavac)

 

H Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for
Bids No. 118012-1 Re-Bid for the purchase of chips, ABC, and asphalt for the
Copper Region; award the asphalt, FOB Plant portion, of Invitation for Bids No.
110812-1 Re-Bid to the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder under Contract
No. 050713 with the understanding that Gila County intends to get quotes on
the trucking from Mesa Materials and Payson Concrete, at the time we
purchase the asphalt, to assure we have the lowest delivered price available at
that time; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Award Contract for
the winning bidder. (Dana Hlavac)

 

I Information/Discussion/Action to consider the following reappointments to
the Industrial Development Authority Board of Directors for an additional six
years, as follows:  Fred Barcon (05/08/13-05/07/19), William A. Byrne
(05/15/13-05/14/19), Gerald Kohlbeck (05/14/13-05/13/19) and Mickie Nye
(05/15/13-05/14/19); and to acknowledge the resignation of Mark Marcanti
from said Board and consider candidates that would be willing to fulfill Mr.
Marcanti's unexpired term of office through January 19, 2016.  
(Don McDaniel)

 

J Information/Discussion/Action to acknowledge Ronnie McDaniel's resignation

  

  



J Information/Discussion/Action to acknowledge Ronnie McDaniel's resignation
from the Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission (Commission) effective
February 22, 2013, and appoint Dawn Brunson to the Commission to complete
the term vacated by Ronnie O. McDaniel, effective May 7, 2013, through
December 31, 2015; and to appoint Ray Jones to fill a vacancy, effective May 7,
2013, through December 31, 2016; and further to reappoint Mary Lou Myers
effective January 1, 2013, through December 31, 2016.  (Don McDaniel)

 

K Information/Discussion/Action to consider issuing official comments from the
Board of Supervisors to the Tonto National Forest regarding the Draft
Environmental Impact Statement Salt River Allotments Vegetative Management
Project. (Jacque Griffin)

 

L Information/Discussion/Action to agree to host the the 2014 County
Supervisors Association (CSA) Legislative Summit on October 14-16, 2013, in
Payson, Arizona, and instruct the host committee to organize the events in
conjunction with CSA.  
(Michael Pastor)

 

M Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the purchase of
Assessor's tax parcel number 302-60-193.  (Marian Sheppard)

 

N Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the purchase of
Assessor's tax parcel number 208-11-017.  (Marian Sheppard)

 

4 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent Agenda
will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted upon
as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the Board of
Supervisors.)

 

 

A Approval of Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. 0010-0444 between the
Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging, Region V (PGCSC),
and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Community Action
Program/Housing Services, whereby PGCSC will allocate funding in the
amount of $10,623 to provide minor home repairs to eligible citizens residing in
Gila County, effective on the date of the last signature through June 30, 2013.

 

B Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS13-028437) in the amount of $105,000 that is between Gila County and
the Arizona Department of Health Services changing the Price Sheet section of
the contract effective January 1, 2013, to provide maternal, infant, and early
childhood home visiting services through July 31, 2017.

 

C Approval of the renewal of Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No.
GRA-RC004-13-0556-01 between Gila County and First Things First in the
amount of $190,000 to continue to provide the Healthy Steps Program services
for the period of July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014.

 

D Approval of three (3) Applications for Extension of Premises/Patio

  

  



D Approval of three (3) Applications for Extension of Premises/Patio
Permit submitted by Albert Keehn to temporarily extend the premises where
liquor is permitted to be served at the Sportsman's Chalet for special events
during the months of May, June and July 2013.

 

E Approval of the Gila County Rodeo Committee's request to use the exhibit hall
and the rodeo arena for the Rodeo Sponsor Dinner on May 9, 2013, and the
Copper Dust Stampede Rodeo, May 10th and 11th, 2013, with a waiver of fees.

 

F Approval of a request by the Payson Rodeo Committee, a non-profit
organization, for the use the Payson Court Complex grounds for a Chili
Cook-Off on September 14, 2013, from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

 

G Acknowledgment of the resignation of Mr. J.P. "Buddy" Rice  from the Rim Trail
Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board and the appointment of
Dick Johns to complete Mr. Rice's term which expires December 31, 2016.

 

H Acknowledgment of the membership changes for the Local Board of the Public
Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS), as follows: 1) Jim Eskew's and
Michael Fane's expiration of their terms of office effective December 31, 2012;
and 2) the election of Karl Schupert, represented as a member on the PSPRS
Local Board, effective February 15, 2013, to February 14, 2017.

 

I Approval to appoint Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager, to serve as a
Trustee representing Gila County on Arizona Counties Insurance Pool's Board
of Trustees and Linda Eastlick, Human Resources Director, as an Alternate
Trustee.

 

J Acknowledgment of the March 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

 

K Acknowledgment of the March 2013 monthly activity report summited by the
Recorder's Office.

 

L Acknowledgment of the March 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Constable's Office

 

M Acknowledgment of the March 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

 

N Approval of the April 16, 2013, BOS meeting minutes.
 

O Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of April 2,
2013, April 9, 2013, April 16, 2013, April 23, 2013 and April 30, 2013.

 

P Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by the
County Manager for the weeks of March 25, 2013, to March 29, 2013;
and April 1, 2013, to April 5, 2013.

 

Q Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of April 30,  

  

  



Q Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of April 30,
2013, and May 7, 2013.

 

 

5 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow
individuals to address issue(s) within the Board's jurisdiction. Board
members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), action
taken as a result of public comment will be limited to responding to criticism
made by those who have addressed the Board of Supervisors, may ask staff to
review the matter or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for
further discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

6 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members
of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief
summary of current events. No action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE
AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE
BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING

  

  



   

ARF-1772     Presentation Agenda Item      2- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Linda V.
Eastlick,
Human
Resources
Director

Submitted By:

Erica Raymond, Human Resources
Assistant, Human Resources

Department: Human Resources

Information
Request/Subject
April 2013 "Spotlight on Employees" Program.

Background Information
The purpose of this program is to provide recognition to employees for the following
qualities: teamwork, quality, morale building, integrity, customer service and initiative.

Evaluation
n/a

Conclusion
n/a

Recommendation
To allow the Human Resources Department to publicly recognize one employee for
April 2013 through the County's "Spotlight on Employees" Program.

Suggested Motion
Public recognition of one employee for April's"Spotlight on Employees" Program, as
follows: Tom Homan. (Juley Bocardo-Homan) 



   

ARF-1788     Presentation Agenda Item      2- B             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Gila Community College FY 2013-2014 Budget Request

Background Information
Larry Stephenson, President of the Gila County Provisional Community College
District Governing Board, submitted a request to present information on Gila
Community College programs and the fiscal year 2013-2014 budget request to the
Board of Supervisors.
 
Gila Community College operates 3 community college campuses in Gila County at
the following locations:  Globe, San Carlos and Payson. 

Evaluation
County elected officials and departments heads are currently compiling their budgets
to be considered by the Board of Supervisors on June 25, 2013, at which time the
Gila County tentative budget will be adopted, so it is beneficial that the Board
consider all budget requests as soon as possible.

Conclusion
The Gila County fiscal year 2013-2014 tentative budget is scheduled to be presented
to the Board of Supervisors for adoption at its June 25th regular meeting; therefore, it
is important to receive all budget requests as soon as possible.

Recommendation
Mr. Stephenson will present the FY 2013-2014 budget request for the Gila
Community College.

Suggested Motion
Presentation of Gila Community College's 2013-2014 fiscal year budget request to be
considered for approval during Gila County's regular budget process.  (Larry
Stephenson)

Attachments
Gila Community College Presentation for 5-7-13



Gila Community College 
April 2013 

Creating futures… 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Gila Community College has campuses in Globe, Payson, and San Carlos.Additionally classes are offered, when there is demand for them, in the communities of Hayden, Roosevelt, Tonto Basin, Young, and Pine.GCC plays a vital role in the economic development of Gila County and is paramount in attracting new industry to the area.GCC contracts with Eastern Arizona College to provide postsecondary education services.



Gila Community College 

 Workforce Development Programs 
 Academic Transfer Track Programs 
 Adult basic education 
 Dual enrollment programs 
 Workforce safety training 
◦ OSHA 10 & 30 for General Industry 
◦ OSHA 10 & 30 for Construction 
◦ MSHA New Miner & Annual Refresher 

 
 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
GCC is able to provided academic and vocational training opportunities in the region that would not otherwise be possible.Programs include: Nursing (Fall 2011 we had 76 full-time RN students), Cosmetology, Industrial Plant Technology, Electrical and Instrumentation Technology, Renewable Sustainable Energy (implemented Fall of 2009), Fire Science, Heavy Equipment, Welding, and Computer Technology.GCC partners with Globe, Miami, San Carlos, Payson, and Hayden school districts to improve academic achievement and to offer dual enrollment programs. GCC also works in concert with Northern Arizona Institute of Technology and Cobre Valley Institute of Technology.Transfer track programs include Liberal Arts, Business, and Math/Science and are accepted by ASU, U of A, and NAU.Partners with TANF (Temporary Assistance for Needy Families) in San Carlos to fill a need for adult basic education to prepare adults for the GED exam.TANF is also transporting students to the San Carlos and Gila Pueblo Campuses.



Gila Community College 

 Revenue Streams: 
◦ State Aid 
◦ Tuition 
◦ Property Tax Levy 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Gila County’s tax levy for GCC is the second lowest in the state. Tuition is the only revenue stream GCC controls. Other community college also receive workforce development funding and federal funding.Gila Community College Tuition as of July 1, 2011			Credit	General	Out of State	Senior* TuitionHours	Tuition	Tuition	with 75% waiverUp to 1	$105.63 	$227.50 	$26.41 2	$211.25 	$455.00 	$52.82 3	$211.25 	$455.00 	$52.82 4	$211.25 	$455.00 	$52.82 5	$211.25 	$455.00 	$52.82 6	$211.25 	$455.00 	$52.82 7	$381.88 	$1,478.75 	$95.47 8	$552.50 	$2,502.50 	$138.13 9	$723.13 	$3,526.25 	$180.79 10	$893.75 	$4,550.00 	$223.44 11	$1,064.38 	$5,573.75 	$266.10 12 or more	$1,235.00 	$6,597.50 	$308.75 WUE (Western Undergraduate Exchange) Program Tuition: $1852.50 for 12 or more credits.			Tuition does not include class or lab fees.			*Senior Tuition Waiver of 75% for those age 60 and over.			



Gila Community College 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Data Source: various Arizona JLBC Appropriations Reports.Economic Challenges:The final State budget for 2008-2009 eliminated capital aid for community colleges.Gila Community College’s portion was $158,000.GCC’s operating aid was reduced by $82,200.GCC’s total reduction was $240,200.The appropriated State budget for 2009-2010 again eliminated capital aid for community colleges.Gila Community College’s portion was $171, 200.GCC’s operating aid was reduced by $60,300.In 2011-2012 GCC’s operating aid was reduced by $230,300.Since 2003-2004 GCC has had enrollment increase every year through 2009-2010. In 2003-2004 GCC’s FTSE was 291, in 2009-2010 it was 1,050. The average annual increase was 27.6%.In 2010-2011 FTSE dropped by 86 students to 964 or 8%. This decrease is attributed primarily to the necessity of increasing tuition.



Programs 
 Nursing (CNA & RN) 
 Allied Health Care 
 Fire Science 
 Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) 
 Electrical & Instrumentation Technology 
 Renewable Sustainable Energy 
 Cosmetology 
 Heavy Equipment 
 Art and Art Education 

 



Programs 
 Transfer Track Programs 
◦ AGEC-A: Liberal Arts 
◦ AGEC-B: Business 
◦ AGEC-C: Math or Science 

 General Studies 
 Adult Basic Education 
 Commercial Driver License Preparation 
 Early Childhood & Elementary Education 
 Web Design 

 
 



GCC Partners 

 Gila County 
 Eastern Arizona College 
 Northern Arizona University 
 City of Globe 
 Town of Payson 
 Town of Miami 
 Area Fire Departments including Globe, 

Diamond Star, Payson, Tonto Basin, 
Pine/Strawberry, and Houston Mesa 
 



GCC Partners 

 Northern Arizona Vocational Institute of 
Technology (NAVIT) 

 Cobre Valley Institute of Technology 
(CVIT) 

 Apache Gold Casino and Resort 
 Mazatzal Casino 
 Cobre Valley Community Hospital 
 Copper Mountain Inn 
 Heritage Health Care 

 



GCC Partners 

 Gila County Superintendent of Schools 
 Globe Unified School District 
 Miami Unified School District 
 San Carlos Unified School District 
 Young Public School District 
 Payson Unified School District 
 Freeport McMoRan 
 BHP Billiton 
 Resolution Copper Mining 

 



GCC Partners 

 Arizona Public Service 
 Volvo Rents 
 Arizona Archaeological Society 
 Arizona Department of Economic 

Security 
 Arizona Department of Revenue 
 Arizona State Land Office 
 Arizona Supreme Court 
 Arizona Department of Transportation 

 



GCC Partners 

 Home Depot 
 San Carlos Apache Tribe and its support 

offices 
 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 

(TANF) 
 Workforce Investment Act (WIA) in 

Globe, Payson, and San Carlos 
 Southern Gila County Economic 

Development Corporation (SGCEDC) 
 



GCC Partners 

 Central Arizona Association of 
Governments (CAAG) 

 Re-Employment and Pre-Layoff Assistance 
Center (REPAC 



2012 Graduates 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Graduates (Associate Degrees) from our three campuses in Globe, Payson and San Carlos:May 2010: 63May 2011: 48May 2012: 70May 2013: 75 (estimated)



Questions?           Comments? 

It’s your community………. it’s your college! 

928.425.8481 



   

ARF-1798     Presentation Agenda Item      2- C             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting
Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk,
BOS, Clerk of the Board
of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
University of Arizona, Gila County Cooperative Extension Office Annual Report and FY
2013-2014 Budget Request

Background Information
Each year Jim Sprinkle, Ph.D., University of Arizona (U of A) Area Extension Agent,
Animal Science and Gila County Cooperative Extension Director, presents the Board
of Supervisors with the U of A, Gila County Cooperative Extension Office's Annual
Report.  During this presentation Dr. Sprinkle provides an overview of the faculty's
accomplishments and program activities for the Cooperative Extension offices located
in Payson, Globe and San Carlos, which is followed by an official budget request for
the upcoming fiscal year to be considered during the County's regular budget process.

Evaluation
County elected officials and department heads are currently compiling their budgets
to be considered by the Board of Supervisors on June 25, 2013, at which time the
Gila County tentative budget will be adopted, so it is beneficial that the Board
consider all budget requests as soon as possible.

Conclusion
The Gila County fiscal year 2013-2014 tentative budget is scheduled to be presented
to the Board of Supervisors for adoption at its June 25th meeting; therefore, all budget
requests should be submitted to the Board for its consideration prior to that date. 

Recommendation
It is recommended that Dr. Sprinkle present the Annual Report and annual budget
request to the Board of Supervisors for the Gila County Cooperative Extension Office.

Suggested Motion
Presentation of the University of Arizona's Gila County Cooperative Extension Office
Annual Report and 2013-2014 fiscal year budget request to be considered for
approval during Gila County's regular budget process. 
(Jim Sprinkle)

Attachments
Gila Co Coop Ext Budget Request to BOS 2013



Gila Co Coop Ext Budget Request to BOS 2013



Gila County Cooperative Extension Budget Request for 2013Gila County Cooperative Extension Budget Request for 2013

Payson

Globe
San Carlos



From its earliest beginning Cooperative Extension has been about 
bringing science into the lives of people to improve agricultural 
production and to better the lives of families and communities.



Building upon the principles espoused by 
Thomas Jefferson and George Washington, 
land grant Colleges were established 150 
years ago (July 2, 1862) to make education 
more widely available through the Morrill 
Land Grant College Act. 

1887 – Hatch Act
Considerable hue and cry among the agricultural community as well as the 
academics like Seaman Knapp led to the establishment of federally sponsored 
agricultural experiment stations at land grant colleges.

1914 – Smith-Lever Act
Created the Cooperative Extension Service, a joint effort between the college of    
agriculture in each state and the USDA. 1080 male & 355 female agents hired 1st yr



How We ServeHow We Serve
• We are unique because our teaching efforts are 

made possible by a cooperative effort between 
the Federal Government, the University of 
Arizona's College of Agriculture and Life 
Sciences and each of the counties we serve. Sciences and each of the counties we serve. 



Cooperative ExtensionCooperative Extension
Arizona Revised StatutesArizona Revised Statutes

• 1974 – AZ House Bill # 2125

• Amended by House Engrossed Senate Bill 1306 & 
signed by Governor in 1986

• Board of Supervisors in each county shall:
– Appoint a 7 member Advisory Board, 4 of which have as their – Appoint a 7 member Advisory Board, 4 of which have as their 

principal business in agricultural production

– Provide reasonable office space/utilities for Extension work

– Review and approve (or revise) the budget for Extension submitted 
by the Advisory Board to be placed on tax rolls

– Submit collected budget to U of A Comptroller



http://www.nrc4tribes.org/announcements/onlinenationaltribalchildwelfareneedsassessment



Addressing Critical Issues in Gila CountyAddressing Critical Issues in Gila County



In 2000, little “on the ground” data 
existed upon which to base federal 
grazing permit decisions.

In 2000, little “on the ground” data 
existed upon which to base federal 
grazing permit decisions.





Change on the Range DocumentedChange on the Range Documented

2001 2005
Distance to Closest Plant, cm 13.2 8.9
Bare Ground, % 35 23
Live Basal Perennial Vegetation, % 5.0 9.2
Threeawn Frequency, % 1 20
Spidergrass Threeawn Frequency, % 11 32

Items in red are different (P < 0.05)

1st Ridge, Total Species Composition from 
Perennial Grasses

2001 8 %
2009 40 %

1st Ridge, Total Species Composition from 
Perennial Grasses

2001 8 %
2009 40 %



Today, Reading the Range Data are being 
incorporated in NEPA decision documents.
Today, Reading the Range Data are being 
incorporated in NEPA decision documents.



• Chris Jones provides national leadership to help 
build Extension capacity to address climate issues.

• $40,000 USDA grant to support 
the Climate, Forests and 
Woodlands eXtension Community 
of Practice (Chris Jones: PI)

Climate & Natural ResourcesClimate & Natural Resources

12

• Chris received the Outstanding 
Team Award from the University 
of AZ College of Agriculture and 
Life Sciences. Chris is the 
founder and co-chair of this 
Environment & Sustainability 
Extension Signature Program 
Team.

Chris Jones and Mark Apel receive the 
2012 UA CALS Outstanding Team 
award, pictured with Extension Director 
Jeff Silvertooth.



Family health issues are critical in the USA.

In Arizona, Gila County is ranked 15th out of 
15 counties for health.1

Family health issues are critical in the USA.

In Arizona, Gila County is ranked 15th out of 
15 counties for health.1

1http://www.countyhealthrankings.org/arizona/gila1http://www.countyhealthrankings.org/arizona/gila



Gila County Cooperative Extension is a 
part of The Arizona Nutrition Network
Gila County Cooperative Extension is a 
part of The Arizona Nutrition Network

• Promote Healthy eating & physical activity

• SNAP-Ed: Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 
Program Education is providing nutrition education 
to both children and adult participants 

• All schools in Gila County are eligible for SNAP-ED• All schools in Gila County are eligible for SNAP-ED

• Nutrition Education is being taught at:
• After-school and summer programs

• Department of Economic Security

• Public Housing

• Food Banks

• Women, Infants, & Children (WIC) 



GILA COUNTY COOPERATIVE EXTENSION & 
MASTER GARDENERS SUPPORT  

GLOBE-MIAMI FARMERS MARKET 

GILA COUNTY COOPERATIVE EXTENSION & 
MASTER GARDENERS SUPPORT  

GLOBE-MIAMI FARMERS MARKET 
• 21-week summer market in 2012.
• $31,729 in total receipts.
• ($4,368 more than last year).

15

Jerry Ullum sells fresh    
produce at the market.

• Approx. 15 vendors/week.
• 150-200 customers weekly.

• GMFM 2013: June 8th

through October 5th



GRANT FUNDED POSITIONS HELPED ENSURE THE 
SUCCESS OF THE GLOBE-MIAMI FARMERS MARKET 
GRANT FUNDED POSITIONS HELPED ENSURE THE 

SUCCESS OF THE GLOBE-MIAMI FARMERS MARKET 

VISTA AmeriCorps volunteer:

• Sarah Renkert (2012-2013)
Sarah Renkert

16

UA Green Fund “Extern” for 

Farmers’ Market:

• Ryan Powers (2012)
Ryan Powers



• 2012 Gila County Garden Workshop series.

• Free programs held in Globe, Young and Payson 
in spring, summer and fall: 6 total.

• 9 Master Gardeners and 6 local experts 
participated as presenters.

GILA COUNTY MASTER GARDENERSGILA COUNTY MASTER GARDENERS

participated as presenters.

• 18 volunteers contributed 
651 service hours, 
reaching over 350 county 
residents.

Renee Zeising presents at 
the Young Spring Garden 
workshop.



$5000 USDA/NIFA grant to establish 5 gardens 
with nutrition education from Junior Master 
Gardener curriculum

SAN CARLOS APACHE RESERVATION 
PEOPLE’S GARDEN PROJECT

DR. SABRINA TUTTLE, ASSOCIATE AGENT

Gardener curriculum

San Carlos Alternative High School
Mount Turnbull Academy High School
San Carlos Rehabilitation/Detention Center
San Carlos 4-H Club
San Carlos Boys and Girls Club



4-H Garden, tended by Ryan 
“Tiger” Stiffarm



Boys and Girls Club youth mix 
dried manure into their gardens





44--H Youth DevelopmentH Youth Development
Gila CountyGila County

44--H Youth DevelopmentH Youth Development
Gila CountyGila County

“Learning By Doing”
School School 

Enrichment Enrichment 
ProgramsPrograms

School School 
Enrichment Enrichment 
ProgramsPrograms

1,000 1,000 Children in 2012Children in 20121,000 1,000 Children in 2012Children in 2012

Agriculture AwarenessAgriculture AwarenessAgriculture AwarenessAgriculture Awareness



44--H is H is 
“Making the Best Better”“Making the Best Better”

44--H is H is 
“Making the Best Better”“Making the Best Better”

4-H teaches valuable life skills!

4-H is:
“Reconnecting children 

with Nature”

In 4-H:
“No Child is Left Inside or Behind”



Funding for Cooperative Extension

USDA 33%

Gila County 
Grants 1%

Gila County 
5%

State & 
Federal 

Grants 28%

State & 
Federal 33%

2012



We want to see science We want to see science appliedapplied to the to the 
issues we face for that is how America issues we face for that is how America 
became great. became great. 

Extension Agents on Tour Extension Agents on Tour -- 1930 1930 

Historic Photo Archive, Santa Rita Experimental Range, University of Arizona, Dr. Mitch McClaran, Curator 



The “Corporate Culture” of Cooperative Extension



Questions?Questions?



Appendix – History of ExtensionAppendix – History of Extension

Historic Photo Archive, Santa Rita Experimental Range, University of Arizona, Dr. Mitch McClaran, Curator



• Plant breeder

• Patented plant seeder

• Improved wool of sheep herd

• 1st American to raise mules

• Practiced soil conservation

• Tested 32 varieties of vegetables

• Invented a seed drill

• Designed improved moldboard plow

• Improved other farm machinery

• Practiced soil conservation

http://www.biography.com/people/thomas-jefferson-9353715http://deyoung.famsf.org/blog/portraits-george-washington-presidents-day

www.adec.edu/clemson/papers/campbell-chapter1.html



1786 August 13. (to George Wythe) "I think by 
far the most important bill in our whole code is 
that for the diffusion of knowledge among the 
people. No other sure foundation can be 
devised, for the preservation of freedom and 
happiness... 

http://picture-book.com/files/userimages/491u/overlookingfieldscrop.jpg

Washington advocated establishing Ag 
Advisory Boards for research and for 
education for the whole nation.

Washington's Eighth Annual Message to Congress ,7 December 
1796, Philadelphia
http://gwpapers.virginia.edu/documents/union/state8.html

http://everythingispolitics.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/03/thomasjefferson.jpg



By 1860, 300 colleges 
in America. Only 10% 
had courses in science.
Agriculture and the 
mechanical arts were
not considered worthy
of study.

www.cals.ncsu.edu/agexed/aee501/landgrants.html

www.cals.ncsu.edu/agexed/leap/aee500/evolution_of_education.ppt



Photo by Matthew Brady“  A classical teacher who has no original 
spontaneous power of thought, and knows nothing 
but Latin and Greek, however, perfectly, is enough 
to stultify a whole generation of boys and make 
them all pedantic fools like himself.”
http://www.cals.ncsu.edu/agexed/aee501/turner.htm

Justin Smith Morrill 

“Let us have such colleges as may rightfully claim the authority 
of teachers to announce facts and fixed laws, and to scatter, 
broadcast that knowledge which will prove useful in building up 
a great nation - great in its resources of wealth and power, but 
greatest of all in the aggregate of its intelligence and virtue.”
http://www.aplu.org/sslpage.aspx?pid=2377

Jonathan Baldwin Turner
library.illinois.edu 



Building upon the principles espoused by 
Thomas Jefferson, land grant Colleges were 
established 150 years ago (July 2, 1862) to 
make education more widely available 
through the Morrill Land Grant College Act. 

1887 – Hatch Act
Considerable hue and cry among the agricultural community as well as the 
academics like Seaman Knapp led to the establishment of federally sponsored 
agricultural experiment stations at land grant colleges.

1908 – Country Life Commission Report (appointed by Pres. Teddy Roosevelt)
Recommended nationalized extension work to reach every person on the land in 
each state, so managed to provide both information and inspiration. 

1914 – Smith-Lever Act (Submitted every yr. from 1909-14)
Created the Cooperative Extension Service, a joint effort between the college of    
agriculture in each state and the USDA. 1080 male & 355 female agents hired 1st 
yr



Seaman Asahel Knapp (1833-1911)

The Father of the Extension Service

Seventy Years of Preparation for Seven Years of Work.

Seaman Knapp had a hand in all 3 missions of the land 
grant college. He taught and did agricultural research at 
Iowa State and helped draft a bill for the establishment 
of Experiment Stations. He also helped found 
Cooperative Extension. He was also a successful farmer 

“It is a sad comment on the hundreds of 
colleges in the United States that almost 
without exception they devote more time 
to the dead languages than to the living, 
and to foreign languages than to our 
own. Whatever may be said in favor of 
this for the diplomat and the professional 
scholar, it cannot be justified as fitting 
men and women for practical life on the 
farm.”

Cooperative Extension. He was also a successful farmer 
and  agricultural journalist.



“What a man hears, he may doubt;“What a man hears, he may doubt;
what he sees, he may also doubt;what he sees, he may also doubt;
but what he does he cannot doubt”but what he does he cannot doubt”

“Each demonstration farm stirs the 
whole county and a large number of 
farmers start at once to do their best. 
This invites investigation. I want your 
careful consideration to the field thus 
opened for accomplishing great results 
in the South."



The Boll Weevil CrisisThe Boll Weevil Crisis

Knapp, who had toured the area 
of full infestation some time 
earlier, wrote: "I saw hundreds of 
farms lying out; I saw a wretched 
people facing starvation; I saw 
whole towns deserted; I saw 
hundreds of farmers walk up and 
draw government rations, which 
were given to them to keep them 
from want."



http://www.flickr.com/photos/agrilife/5351693429/

W. C. Stallings

http://www.encyclopediaofalabama.org/face/Multimedia.jsp?id=m-3801

1st Cooperative Extension County Agents, Nov. 12, 1906 

Thomas Monroe Campbell



Solving the Problem of Agricultural Education 

1.No scientific training for agriculture

2.Limited scientific curricula for agriculture

Land Grant 
Colleges

Ag Expt.
Stations 

3.Lack of application of agricultural science

4.Being relevant to the needs of society

Stations 

Cooperative 
Extension 

Returning 
to our
Roots



   

ARF-1775     Regular Agenda Item      3- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community
Development Division Director

Submitted By: Beverly Valenzuela, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Development Division

Department: Community Development Division Division: Community Development Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Temporary Adjustment to Fee Schedule for Wastewater Certification Classes

Background Information
On April 23, 2002, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted the fee schedule for the Gila County
Health Department Environmental Health Services.  The fee of $100 was adopted for wastewater
certification classes and includes: 1) two day course, 2) pass post examination, and 3) listing as certified
to perform site suitabilities.

On March 15, 2011, the Gila County Board of Supervisors approved the decrease in the wastewater
certification classes for the year ending December 31, 2011. 

Evaluation
With the economic situation as it is today, the Community Development Division would like to
temporarily lower the fee to help contractors obtain or continue with their certification.

Conclusion
This fee would only be decreased for this calendar year, ending December 31, 2013.

Recommendation
The Community Development Division Director, Robert Gould, recommends temporarily decreasing the
cost of wastewater certification classes from $100 to $50.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a temporary decrease in the cost of wastewater certification
classes from $100 to $50 for the year ending December 31, 2013. (Bob Gould)



   

ARF-1779     Regular Agenda Item      3- B             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2013-2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

Upon execution by
ADOH-4/15/2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Funding Agreement No. 309-13 with Arizona Department of Housing.

Background Information
The Arizona Department of Housing combines Federal HOME resources from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) with state resources from the State Housing Trust Fund (HTF)
into a single housing program called the State Housing Fund (SHF).

State Housing Trust Funds (HTF): The HTF was established in 1988 by the AZ State Legislature to
provide a flexible funding source to assist in meeting the housing needs of low-income families in
Arizona.

Federal HOME funds (HOME):  The HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) was created by the
National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 (NAHA).  The funds are allocated through HUD and are
intended to " increase the number of families served with decent, safe, sanitary, and affordable housing
and expand the long-term supply of affordable housing."  

On October 16, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved the submission of a State Housing Fund
Application for Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Programs to the Arizona Department of Housing
which has been awarded under this funding agreement. 

Evaluation
Gila County currently maintains a waiting list for income eligible housing rehabilitation applicants.  The
State Housing Fund award will be comprised of Home and State Housing Trust Funds and will allow
Gila County Community Action/Housing Services to provide owner occupied housing rehabilitation to
approximately 8 owner-occupied housing units within Gila County.  Assistance will be provided to the
beneficiaries in the form of a forgivable deferred payment loan with a maximum investment per unit of
$50,000.

The State has reserved $400,000 from State Housing Fund HOME dollars for project funding.  Approved
uses include: direct construction, lead paint inspection/clearance, title and recording fees, BPI testing,
temporary relocation expenses if attributable to an individual unit, and project specific administration.

The State has reserved $40,000 from the Housing Trust Fund for general administration.  Approved
uses include: salaries, wages and ERE for positions identified in the application, professional services,
travel, general office supplies, equipment maintenance and repair, rent and operating services.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this funding agreement, Gila County Community Action



By the Board of Supervisors approving this funding agreement, Gila County Community Action
Program, Housing Services will provide energy efficient rehabilitation to 8 units that are currently on
the waiting list for income eligible housing rehabilitation.

Recommendation
The Director of Community Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this funding
agreement.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Funding Agreement No. 309-13 between the Arizona
Department of Housing (ADOH) and Gila County Community Action/Housing Services, whereby ADOH
will provide funding in the amount of $440,000 to be used to provide owner occupied housing
rehabilitation to eligible residents residing in Gila County effective on the date of execution by ADOH
through April 15, 2015.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Funding Agreement No. 309-13 ADOH
Environmental Review Contract No. 309-13 ADOH
Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation ADOH
Environmental Review Checklist
Legal Explanation































































































































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-1808     Regular Agenda Item      3- C             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton,
Public Works
Division Director

Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive
Administrative Asst., Public Works
Division

Department: Public Works Division

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 13-05-01 RE: U.S. 60 Silver King & Superior Street Widening in
ADOT's 2014-2018 Five-Year Transportation Facilities Construction Program

Background Information
The Arizona Department of Transportation's 2014-2018 Five-Year Transportation
Facilities Construction Program (TFCP) included reconstruction and lane additions to
U.S. 60 Silver King and Superior Street sections to be done in FY 2013; however,
those projects have now been moved by ADOT to commence in FY 2015.

Evaluation
The cities, towns, and unincorporated areas of Gila and Pinal Counties are concerned
about the safety of their citizens as well as those who may travel throughout the
region. The existing conditions of the segments of U.S. 60 Silver King and Superior
Street have been proven to be an exceedingly dangerous portion of the highway and
hazardous for travelers. ADOT has set aside and programmed funding for these
segments of U.S. 60 in FY 2015. The opening of the BHP Pinto Valley mine in October
2012, has significantly impacted traffic patterns on U.S. 60. On May 1, 2012, the
Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 12-04-03, declaring its support of
ADOT's 2014-2018 Five-Year TFCP.

Conclusion
Several projects that do not have the critical safety implications as these segments of
U.S. 60 have been delayed instead.

Recommendation
Declare continued support to maintain the projects described in ADOT's
2014-2018 Five-Year TFCP for the reconstruction and lane additions to U.S. 60 Silver
King and Superior Street to begin no later than FY 2015.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 13-05-01, which declares
continued support to maintain the projects described in the Arizona Department of
Transportation's 2014-2018 Five-Year Transportation Facilities Construction Program
as reconstruction and lane additions to U.S. 60, the Silver King and Superior Street
sections, to begin no later than FY 2015. (Steve Stratton)



Attachments
Resolution No. 13-05-01



Resolution No. 13-05-01 Page 1 of 2

RESOLUTION NO. 13-05-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DECLARING ITS CONTINUED SUPPORT TO MAINTAIN THE 
PROJECTS DESCRIBED IN THE ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION’S  (ADOT) FIVE YEAR TRANSPORTATION 
FACILITIES CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM FOR THE 
RECONSTRUCTION AND LANE ADDITIONS TO U.S. 60 SILVER KING 
AND SUPERIOR STREETS TO BEGIN NO LATER THAN FISCAL 
YEAR 2015 (FY 2015).   

WHEREAS, the cities, towns, and unincorporated areas of Gila and Pinal Counties are 
concerned about the safety of its citizens as well as those who may travel throughout the region; 
and

WHEREAS, the existing conditions of the segments of U.S. 60 Silver King and Superior Streets 
have been proven to be an exceedingly dangerous portion of the highway and hazardous for 
travelers; and

WHEREAS, ADOT has set aside and programmed funding for these segments of U.S. 60 in FY 
2015; and

WHEREAS, the opening of the BHP Pinto Valley mine in October 2012, has significantly 
impacted traffic patterns on U.S. 60; and

WHEREAS, on May 1, 2012, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 12-04-03, 
declaring its support of ADOT’s Five Year Transportation Facilities Construction Program, 
which includes the reconstruction and lane additions to U.S. 60 Silver King and Superior Streets 
to begin no later than FY 2013; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors will continue to make diligent efforts to ensure ADOT’s 
approval of these projects.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does 
hereby declare its continued support to maintain the projects described in ADOT’s Five Year 
Transportation Facilities Construction Program for the reconstruction and lane additions to U.S. 
60 Silver King and Superior Streets to begin no later than FY 2015.



Resolution No. 13-05-01 Page 2 of 2

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of May 2013, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona

Attest: GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

______________________________ __________________________________
Marian Sheppard, Clerk Michael A. Pastor, Chairman

Approved as to form:

______________________________
Bryan Chambers
Deputy Attorney Principal



   

ARF-1817     Regular Agenda Item      3- D             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton,
Public Works
Division
Director

Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive
Administrative Asst., Public Works
Division

Department: Public Works Division
Fiscal Year: 2013 - 2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2013 through
2014

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Work with ADOT on ADOT's Lion Springs Project Re Grant Application
Cash Match Requirement

Background Information
The Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) has been working on Highway 260
from Payson to Heber for the last several years.  The Lion Springs project is the last
piece needed to make Highway 260 divided all the way.  ADOT has submitted a grant
application to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) for a $40,000,000 grant
to design and construct this project.

Evaluation
Public Works feels that completion of this project is vital for the safety of Gila County
citizens and it will help to continue the economic growth in the Payson area.

Conclusion
After reaching a verbal agreement with the Arizona State Engineer to have Gila
County added to the roadway easement from the Forest Service, Gila County would
then be allowed to match the 6% grant portion utilizing the County's Half-Cent
Transportation Excise Fund.  The 6% match portion has been added to the Gila
County Five-Year Transportation Capital Improvement Plan.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board consider the
possibility of matching a federal grant that will be applied to the design and build
of Lion Springs Road off of Highway 260.  The match would be approximately
$2,400,000.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize Public Works to move forward in working



Information/Discussion/Action to authorize Public Works to move forward in working
on an agreement with the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) with regard
to a cash match requirement in the amount of $2.4 million utilizing the County's
Half-Cent Transportation Excise Fund for a $40 million grant application that ADOT
has submitted to the Federal Highway Administration in order for ADOT to design and
build the Lion Springs project.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
ARS §28-6392
Lion Springs Presentation







   

ARF-1793     Regular Agenda Item      3- E             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton,
Public Works
Division Director

Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive
Administrative Asst., Public Works
Division

Department: Public Works Division

Information
Request/Subject
Annual Yearling Auction/Sale Request for Equipment Assistance on May 15, 2013

Background Information
The Gila County Cattle Growers Association holds an annual yearling auction/sale at
the Burch Sale Yard.

Evaluation
The annual yearling auction/sale that was last held in May 2012 brought in over
$2,000,000 to Gila County. In using the Chamber of Commerce multiplier, this would
yield a $12,000,000 to $14,000,000 benefit to our community.  It is expected there
will be a similar outcome this year as well.

Conclusion
The Gila County Cattle Growers Association is asking for support during the annual
yearling auction/sale to be held on May 15, 2013.  In order for Gila County to
administer equipment support, it is agreed that only Gila County employees will be
operating any equipment utilized.

Recommendation
Public Works recommends that Gila County assist in the annual yearling sale by
supplying equipment to be operated by Gila County operators and to
include providing a tent, tables, and chairs for this annual event.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action pursuant to A.R.S. §11-254.04 to find that to assist in
annual yearling auction/sale is an economic development activity because it will
assist in the creation or retention of jobs or will otherwise improve or enhance the
economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County, and to authorize Public Works to
supply requested equipment with Gila County operators for the Gila County Cattle
Growers Association's annual yearling auction/sale.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Gila County Cattle Growers Association Request for Assistance Letter March 26 2013





   

ARF-1786     Regular Agenda Item      3- F             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public
Works Division Deputy
Director

Submitted By: Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering
Fiscal Year: 2013-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

April 2013 to April 2016 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Environmental Systems Research Institute (ESRI) Small Government Term Enterprise License
Agreement (ELA)

Background Information
ESRI is software that is an industry standard software tool for the collection and display of
data in a graphical format that shows the interrelationships of data elements, for example,
parcel ownership, 911 mapping, elections information.

At least four (4) County departments are currently using either outdated versions of the
software or similar tools from a different vendor. These departments are realizing a need to
improve and standardize data collection functions. Standardization across the County will
facilitate coordination of departmental specific elements (data layers.) Due to the cost of
individual programs updates or replacement of outdated software, it was realized that the
funds of each individual department would expend, when combined, would be very close to
the cost of a Countywide enterprise license agreement (ELA) whereby the software could be
utilized as needed by any County department without restrictions or costs imposed by
individual licensing.

It is envisioned that the various data sets (layers) would be stored in a central database
repository that could be accessed by all users enhancing constituent information and services.

Evaluation
ESRI currently has better than 90% market share within government office with regard to
spatial data software. This means our ability to share data and work collaboratively with other
government partners is greatly improved. For instance, near the start of each fire season we
receive a request from the State Wildland Fire Office for a copy of our parcel map with
valuation data. Rather than them having a snapshot of our data, they could pull more recent
data at the start of an incident and have the most current and up to date information.

Additionally nearly every software package in the County references constituents by address,
parcel number or both and they connect with ESRI mapping software (PW-Cartegraph,
ComDev-Trackit, Assessor-Realware, Recorder-Voter Registration, Treasurer-Tyler). Having a
web-based map of land ownership would allow extension of the one-stop concept.
Constituents could possibly start a lot improvement process by clicking on their parcel and
entering basic information without visiting one of the County development offices or a downed



stop sign could be reported via a web application.

By not entering into this contract the financial burden to the County will be higher. Looking at
the current bare minimum needs of the County, the expenditures required would be
approximately $46,000 to meet the current needs of the County; (2 seats each in Elections,
Recorder & Emergency Management with 1 seat in Public Works, at $6,000 each, plus $4,000
annual maintenance on the current web server in Public Works.) The other member
offices/departments needing this software would push that total significantly higher in short
order.

Conclusion
Leadership within the Assessor, Recorder, Treasurer and Sheriff’s Offices as well as Public
Works, Community Development, Health and Emergency Management and Elections
Departments recognize the benefits and needs and are willing to enter into a cost sharing to
cover the initial annual cost of the contract. Should other County partners wish to join, then
the costs would be redistributed accordingly as the contract is reviewed annually for renewal.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of this contract allowing unlimited County use of ESRI software
products as specified in their contract scope.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Small Government Enterprise License Agreement
with Environmental Systems Research Institute. 
(Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Quotation #20424029 Environmental Systems Research Institute
Attachment A
Sole Source Letter from Environmental Systems Research Institute
County Sole Source Information































































   

ARF-1809     Regular Agenda Item      3- G             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public
Works Division Director

Submitted By: Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: Public Works Division Division: Roads
Fiscal Year: FY 2013-2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

05-07-13 to 09-06-14 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Award Bid No.110812-1 Re-Bid for Chips and ABC for the Copper Region

Background Information
On December 18, 2012, the Gila County Board of Supervisors authorized a Request to
Advertise for Bids No. 110812 for the purchase of chips, ABC, asphalt & cold mix for the
Copper Region and the Timber Region.

Invitation for Bids No. 110812 was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt on January 2, 2013,
and January 9, 2013.  All sealed bids were due on January 16, 2013.

On March 19, 2013, upon review of all bids submitted, and based on the recommendation of
the Public Works Director, the Gila County Board of Supervisors approved award of the
Timber Region portion of Bid No. 110812 to the lowest responsible bidder.

Also presented to the Board of Supervisors on March 19, 2013, was a request to re-advertise
and re-bid the Copper Region portion of Invitation for Bids No. 110812, based on the pricing
that came in for the Copper Region on the original bid date of January 16, 2013. The Board of
Supervisors approved the request to re-advertise and re-bid the Copper Region portion.
Invitation for Bids No. 110812-1 Re-Bid Chips, ABC and Asphalt for the Copper Region was
advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt on March 27, 2013, and April 3, 2013. All sealed bids for
Invitation for Bids No. 110812-1 Re-Bid Chips, ABC and Asphalt for the Copper Region were
due on April 17, 2013.

Evaluation
Award of this bid would allow for the Consolidated Roads Department to purchase chips, ABC
and asphalt in order to maintain roads and parking lots, pavement preservation and chip
sealing for the Copper Region of Gila County. 

In addition to acquiring competitive pricing for these materials, the advantage to having a
contract in place for the purchase of chips, ABC and asphalt is that the unit price will be fixed
for the term of the contract, and other political subdivisions, cities and towns of the State of
Arizona, in which Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement, can benefit
from the same pricing. The term of the contract shall remain in effect for a period of sixteen
(16) months, unless terminated or cancelled, with an option to renew for two (2) additional one
(1) year periods.



Conclusion
During the planning process for FY 2013, Public Works is forecasting the aggregate materials
for repairs and maintenance of roads in both the Copper and Timber Regions to be
approximately $600,000 to $900,000, depending upon the weather and other factors. Some of
the major maintenance projects require more products and some of the work is reimbursable
by the Forest Service. To obtain contracts for road materials, by region, has saved the County
money by choosing vendors, due to the difference in hauling costs, while remaining competitive.

Recommendation
After extensive review of all submitted proposals, the Public Works Director recommends
that the Board of Supervisors approve the award of the chips and ABC portion of Invitation for
Bids No. 118012-1 for the Copper Region to Cemex.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bids No.
118012-1 Re-Bid for the purchase of chips, ABC, and asphalt for the Copper Region;
award the chips and ABC portion of Invitation for Bids No. 110812-1 Re-Bid to the lowest,
responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the award
contract for the winning bidder. (Dana Hlavac)

Attachments
Bidder's List
Bid Opening Sign-in-Sheet
Bid Results
Cemex sealed bid
Mesa Materials sealed bid
Contract No. 110812-1 with Cemex
Legal Explanation



      BID  110812-1 Re-bid

TITLE:

      BID              DUE                          2:00 P.M.

      NO.: DATE:
 

 

Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                         

03-21-13  3:02 P.M.                                  

Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

Fisher Sand & Rock/dba Southwest Asphalt                                  

rkissling@fisherind.com                                                           

480-730-1033

Cemex                                                                                      

josel.quintero@cemex.com                                                          

928-425-5775

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.                                                                       

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.

Payson Concrete & Materials                                            

pcmexc@gmail.com                                                            

928-476-3664

Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

Chips, ABC, Asphalt-Rebid for Copper Region

110812-1 April 17, 2013

EMAIL VERIFICATION

MDI Rock                                                                                 

miked@mdirock.com                                                                

602-569-8722

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.

BIDDER FIRM NAME COMMENTS

BIDDER'S LIST

GILA COUNTY

Mesa Materials                                                                        

psouthway@mesamaterials.com                                                            

602-803-9828

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:58 P.M.

Pioneer Sand                                                                        

ken@pioneersand.com                                                            

602-989-2260

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

Vulcan Materials                                                                        

shimerd@vmcmail.com                                                            

602-452-5535

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

All Rock Supply, Inc.                                                                     

Kristen.rodriguez@allrocksupply.net                                                            

480-797-6566

Paloma Ready Mix & Materials                                                            

lmb@palomareadymix.com                                                           

602-686-8928

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

Western Aggregates                                                            

bob.mack@westernagg.com                                                           

602-291-1588

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                 

03-22-13  10:35 A.M.

LaFarge North America                                                               

eric.marshall@lafarge-na.com                                                           

505-918-4301

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.



FW Dodge                                                                                      

dodge_reocwe@mcgraw-hill.com                   
Downloaded RFP on FW Dodge 

website 03-21-13 at 3:08 P.M.

Arizona Materials                                                                                

eloken@azmatl.com                                                          

602-980-0721

Emailed RFP 03-22-13 at 7:54 A.M.
Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                 

03-22-13  10:31 A.M.

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                 

03-22-13  4:11 A.M.

Hawker & Evans Asphalt Company                                                                                

dennisr@hawkerevans.com                                                          

602-826-7800

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  4:58 P.M.

Fisher Sand & Rock/dba Southwest Asphalt                                  

wbryant@fisherind.com                                                           

602-513-2824

Emailed RFP 04-11-13 at 10:05 

A.M.

Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                 

04-11-13  11:18 A.M.

Blue Book                                                                                     

www.thebluebook.com                     



 





Chips, ABC Asphalt

Copper Region

Re-Bid 110812-1

April 17, 2013

2:00 P.M.

1/2" Chips 1/2" Chips 3/8" Chips 3/8" Chips ABC-ADOT CL 2 ABC-ADOT CL 2 ABC- MAG ABC- MAG

VENDOR FOB Delivered FOB Delivered FOB Delivered FOB Delivered

Cemex No bid No bid 14.00$              20.25$              9.00$          15.25$        9.00$        15.25$    

Mesa Materials* No bid No bid No bid No bid 5.37$          22.62$        5.37$        22.62$    

  *Additional $5.75 per ton/mile past specified location in RFP 110812-1 Re-Bid

Payson Concrete & Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

MDI Rock No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Pioneer Sand No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Vulcan Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

All Rock Supply, Inc. No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

LaFarge North America No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Paloma Ready Mix & Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Western Aggregates No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Fisher Sand & Rock dba SW Asphalt No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Hawker & Evans Company No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Arizona Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

3/8" Asphalt-MAG 3/8" Asphalt-MAG 3/4" Asphalt-MAG 3/4" Asphalt-MAG

VENDOR FOB Delivered FOB Delivered

Cemex No bid No bid No bid No bid

Mesa Materials* 67.60$              84.60$              64.38$              81.38$              

  *Additional $5.75 per ton/mile past specified location in RFP 110812-1 Re-Bid

Payson Concrete & Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

MDI Rock No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Pioneer Sand No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Vulcan Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

All Rock Supply, Inc. No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

LaFarge North America No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Paloma Ready Mix & Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Western Aggregates No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Fisher Sand & Rock dba SW Asphalt No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Hawker & Evans Company No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Arizona Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid



















































































































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-1810     Regular Agenda Item      3- H             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public
Works Division Director

Submitted By: Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Department: Public Works Division Division: Roads
Fiscal Year: 2013-2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

05-07-13 to 09-06-14 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Award Bid No.110812-1 Re-Bid for Asphalt for the Copper Region

Background Information
On December 18, 2012, the Gila County Board of Supervisors authorized a Request to
Advertise for Bids No. 110812 chips, ABC, asphalt & cold mix for the Copper Region and the
Timber Region.

Invitation for Bids No. 110812 was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt on January 2, 2013,
and January 9, 2013. All sealed bids were due on January 16, 2013.

On March 19, 2013, upon review of all bids submitted, and based on the recommendation of
the Public Works Director, the Gila County Board of Supervisors approved award of the
Timber Region portion of Bid No. 110812 to the lowest responsible bidder.

Also presented to the Board of Supervisors on March 19, 2013, was a request to re-advertise
and re-bid the Copper Region portion of Invitation for Bids No. 110812, based on the pricing
that came in for the Copper Region on the original bid date of January 16, 2013. The Board of
Supervisors approved the request to re-advertise and re-bid the Copper Region portion.
Invitation for Bids No. 110812-1 Re-Bid Chips, ABC and Asphalt for the Copper Region was
advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt on March 27, 2013, and April 3, 2013. All sealed bids for
Invitation for Bids No. 110812-1 Re-Bid Chips, ABC and Asphalt for the Copper Region were
due on April 17, 2013.

Evaluation
Award of this bid would allow for the Consolidated Roads Department to purchase chips, ABC
and asphalt in order to maintain roads and parking lots, pavement preservation and chip
sealing for the Copper Region of Gila County.

In addition to acquiring competitive pricing for these materials, the advantage to having a
contract in place for the purchase of chips, ABC and asphalt is that the unit price will be fixed
for the term of the contract, and other political subdivisions, cities and towns of the State of
Arizona, in which Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement, can benefit
from the same pricing. The term of the contract shall remain in effect for a period of sixteen
(16) months, unless terminated or cancelled, with an option to renew for two (2) additional one
(1) year periods.



Conclusion
During the planning process for FY 2013, Public Works is forecasting the aggregate materials
for repairs and maintenance of roads in both the Copper and Timber Regions, to be
approximately $600,000 to $900,000, depending upon the weather and other factors. Some of
the major maintenance projects require more products and some of the work is reimbursable
by the Forest Service. To obtain contracts for road materials, by region, has saved the County
money by choosing vendors, due to the difference in hauling costs, while remaining competitive.

Recommendation
After extensive review of all submitted proposals, the Public Works Director recommends the
Board of Supervisors approve the award of the asphalt, FOB Plant portion, of Invitation for
Bids No. 118012-1 for the Copper Region to Mesa Materials under Contract No. 050713.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bids No.
118012-1 Re-Bid for the purchase of chips, ABC, and asphalt for the Copper Region; award
the asphalt, FOB Plant portion, of Invitation for Bids No. 110812-1 Re-Bid to the lowest,
responsible and qualified bidder under Contract No. 050713 with the understanding that Gila
County intends to get quotes on the trucking from Mesa Materials and Payson Concrete, at the
time we purchase the asphalt, to assure we have the lowest delivered price available at that
time; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Award Contract for the winning bidder. 
(Dana Hlavac)

Attachments
Bidder's List
Bid Opening Sign-in-Sheet
Bid Results
Cemex sealed bid
Mesa Materials sealed bid
Contract No. 050713 with Mesa Materials
Legal Explanation



      BID  110812-1 Re-bid

TITLE:

      BID              DUE                          2:00 P.M.

      NO.: DATE:
 

 

Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                         

03-21-13  3:02 P.M.                                  

Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

Fisher Sand & Rock/dba Southwest Asphalt                                  

rkissling@fisherind.com                                                           

480-730-1033

Cemex                                                                                      

josel.quintero@cemex.com                                                          

928-425-5775

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.                                                                       

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.

Payson Concrete & Materials                                            

pcmexc@gmail.com                                                            

928-476-3664

Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

Chips, ABC, Asphalt-Rebid for Copper Region

110812-1 April 17, 2013

EMAIL VERIFICATION

MDI Rock                                                                                 

miked@mdirock.com                                                                

602-569-8722

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.

BIDDER FIRM NAME COMMENTS

BIDDER'S LIST

GILA COUNTY

Mesa Materials                                                                        

psouthway@mesamaterials.com                                                            

602-803-9828

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:58 P.M.

Pioneer Sand                                                                        

ken@pioneersand.com                                                            

602-989-2260

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

Vulcan Materials                                                                        

shimerd@vmcmail.com                                                            

602-452-5535

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

All Rock Supply, Inc.                                                                     

Kristen.rodriguez@allrocksupply.net                                                            

480-797-6566

Paloma Ready Mix & Materials                                                            

lmb@palomareadymix.com                                                           

602-686-8928

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

Western Aggregates                                                            

bob.mack@westernagg.com                                                           

602-291-1588

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                 

03-22-13  10:35 A.M.

LaFarge North America                                                               

eric.marshall@lafarge-na.com                                                           

505-918-4301

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Delivery Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  2:54 P.M.



FW Dodge                                                                                      

dodge_reocwe@mcgraw-hill.com                   
Downloaded RFP on FW Dodge 

website 03-21-13 at 3:08 P.M.

Arizona Materials                                                                                

eloken@azmatl.com                                                          

602-980-0721

Emailed RFP 03-22-13 at 7:54 A.M.
Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                 

03-22-13  10:31 A.M.

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                 

03-22-13  4:11 A.M.

Hawker & Evans Asphalt Company                                                                                

dennisr@hawkerevans.com                                                          

602-826-7800

Emailed RFP 03-21-13 at 2:54 P.M.
Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                 

03-21-13  4:58 P.M.

Fisher Sand & Rock/dba Southwest Asphalt                                  

wbryant@fisherind.com                                                           

602-513-2824

Emailed RFP 04-11-13 at 10:05 

A.M.

Rec'd "Read Confirmation"                 

04-11-13  11:18 A.M.

Blue Book                                                                                     

www.thebluebook.com                     



 





Chips, ABC Asphalt

Copper Region

Re-Bid 110812-1

April 17, 2013

2:00 P.M.

1/2" Chips 1/2" Chips 3/8" Chips 3/8" Chips ABC-ADOT CL 2 ABC-ADOT CL 2 ABC- MAG ABC- MAG

VENDOR FOB Delivered FOB Delivered FOB Delivered FOB Delivered

Cemex No bid No bid 14.00$              20.25$              9.00$          15.25$        9.00$        15.25$    

Mesa Materials* No bid No bid No bid No bid 5.37$          22.62$        5.37$        22.62$    

  *Additional $5.75 per ton/mile past specified location in RFP 110812-1 Re-Bid

Payson Concrete & Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

MDI Rock No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Pioneer Sand No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Vulcan Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

All Rock Supply, Inc. No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

LaFarge North America No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Paloma Ready Mix & Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Western Aggregates No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Fisher Sand & Rock dba SW Asphalt No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Hawker & Evans Company No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Arizona Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

3/8" Asphalt-MAG 3/8" Asphalt-MAG 3/4" Asphalt-MAG 3/4" Asphalt-MAG

VENDOR FOB Delivered FOB Delivered

Cemex No bid No bid No bid No bid

Mesa Materials* 67.60$              84.60$              64.38$              81.38$              

  *Additional $5.75 per ton/mile past specified location in RFP 110812-1 Re-Bid

Payson Concrete & Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

MDI Rock No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Pioneer Sand No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Vulcan Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

All Rock Supply, Inc. No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

LaFarge North America No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Paloma Ready Mix & Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Western Aggregates No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Fisher Sand & Rock dba SW Asphalt No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Hawker & Evans Company No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid

Arizona Materials No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid No bid







































































































































































dsgroi
Typewritten Text

dsgroi
Typewritten Text

dsgroi
Typewritten Text

dsgroi
Typewritten Text
CONTRACT NO. 050713

dsgroi
Typewritten Text

dsgroi
Typewritten Text

dsgroi
Typewritten Text

dsgroi
Typewritten Text

dsgroi
Typewritten Text
AWARD FOR ASPHALT FOB PLANT-ONLY























































































dsgroi
Typewritten Text
CONTRACT NO. 050713

dsgroi
Typewritten Text

dsgroi
Typewritten Text

dsgroi
Typewritten Text

dsgroi
Typewritten Text
    AWARD FOR ASPHALT FOB PLANT-ONLY

dsgroi
Typewritten Text



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-1823     Regular Agenda Item      3- I             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting
Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS,
Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Industrial Development Authority Membership Changes

Background Information
The Industrial Development Authority (IDA) was created by the Gila County Board of
Supervisors (BOS) through the adoption of a resolution on August 7, 1972.  Following
the adoption of that resolution and during the same BOS meeting, the BOS adopted
another resolution electing the first 3 members of the Board of Directors.  

Article IX of the Articles of Incorporation of the IDA state, "...The first Board of
Directors of the  corporation was elected by the Board of Supervisors of Gila County,
Arizona on August 7, 1972, and consists of the following three (3) persons...The term
of Directors elected hereafter shall be six (6) years..."  It also states that the officers of
the corporation shall consist of a President, one or more Vice-Presidents, a Secretary
and Treasurer, together with such additional officers as the Board of Directors may
deem necessary.

Article I, Section 3 of the Bylaws of the IDA addresses vacancies on the Board of
Directors.  It states, "In the event that a vacancy occurs in the Board of Directors
other than by the expiration of the term of a director, the vacancy shall be filled by
the Board of Supervisors of Gila County for the unexpired portion of the term."

In summary, the Board of Supervisors appoints members of the IDA Board of
Directors, and the Board of Directors elects its officers.

Evaluation
Fred Barcon, IDA President, submitted a letter to Chairman Michael Pastor on April
22, 2013, submitting notice of the April 8, 2013, resignation letter that was submitted
by Mark Marcanti.

William Long, IDA Vice President, submitted a letter to Chairman Michael Pastor on
April 24, 2013, requesting the reappointment of Fred Barcon and Gerald (Gerry)
Kohlbeck to the IDA Board of Directors for another six-year term of office.  

Sandy Palmer, IDA Administrative Manager, on behalf of the IDA Board of Directors
submitted an email to the Clerk of the Board of April 25, 2013, requesting the
reappointment of William A. Byrne and Mickie Nye for another six-year term of office.



reappointment of William A. Byrne and Mickie Nye for another six-year term of office.

Conclusion
The Board needs to acknowledge the resignation of Mark Marcanti from the IDA Board
of Directors, and consider the appointment of an individual (either at this meeting or a
future meeting) to fill Mr. Marcanti's unexpired term of office.

Listed below are the following IDA Board members who are seeking reappointment to
said Board by the Board of Supervisors with term of office expiration dates, as follows:

Fred Barcon - expires May 7, 2013
William A. Byrne - expires May 14, 2013
Gerald Kohlbeck - expires May 13, 2013
Mickie Nye - expires May 14, 2013

Recommendation
It is recommended that the BOS consider reappointing Mr. Barcon and Mr. Kohlbeck
to the IDA Board of Directors for another six-year term of office; consider and possibly
naming a candidate(s) that would be willing to serve on the Board of Directors
through January 20, 2016, to fill Mark Marcanti's unexpired term of office; and
consider reappointing William A. Byrne and Mickie Nye for another six-year term of
office, if they so desire, or appointing other individuals.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider the following reappointments to
the Industrial Development Authority Board of Directors for an additional six years, as
follows:  Fred Barcon (05/08/13-05/07/19), William A. Byrne (05/15/13-05/14/19),
Gerald Kohlbeck (05/14/13-05/13/19) and Mickie Nye (05/15/13-05/14/19); and to
acknowledge the resignation of Mark Marcanti from said Board and consider
candidates that would be willing to fulfill Mr. Marcanti's unexpired term of office
through January 19, 2016.  
(Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Proposed IDA BOD Membership List
4/22/13 IDA Letter Re Mark Marcanti's BOD Resignation
4/24/13 IDA Letter Requesting BOD Reappointments
4/25/13 Email from IDA Re BOD Reappointments



THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF GILA 
(Proposed to the BOS on 5/7/13 and if approved the list will be as follows) 

 
NAME OF MEMBER TYPE OF 

APPOINTMENT 
 

Mark with A, B, C, 
D or E – see below 

NEW APPOINTMENT OR REAPPOINTMENT 
(Include BOS approval date next to letter) 

New Appointment:  Choose “A” or “B” 
A -for existing vacancy or 
B -to fill a vacancy created by (provide name) 
or 
Reappointment:  Mark with a “C” and include 
number of years served prior to most recent 
appointment 

DATES OF TERM 
(Put the month, day and 
year both beginning & 

ending dates) 

LENGTH OF TERM FOR 
CURRENT APPOINTMENT 

(# of years) 

Fred Barcon D  C (05/07/13) 18 years (apptd. 11/6/95) 05/08/13-05/07/19 6   
William Long D  C (06/07/11) 12 years (apptd. 5/18/98)  05/18/10-05/17/16 6   
William Alvin Byrne D  C (05/07/13) 4 years, 1 month 05/15/13-05/14/19 6   
Gerald Kohlbeck D  C (05/07/13) 6 years 05/14/13-05/13/19 6   
Mark Marcanti D  C (06/07/11) 6 years (apptd. 1/20/04) 01/20/10-01/19/16 

RESIGNED 04-08-13 
6   

VACANCY D B (Mark Marcanti) ??/??/??-01/19/16  
Cliff Potts D A (06/07/11) - 06/07/11-06/06/17 6 
Ray Pugel D A (06/07/11) 6 yrs (2/16/99-2/16/05: 

resigned 11/3/05) 
06/07/11-06/06/17 6 

Mickie Nye  D C (05/07/13) 1 year, 5 months 05/15/13-05/14/19 6 
 
Appointment Designation Definitions: 
A) Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
B) Supervisor Appointment: Member unrestricted by district. 
C) Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the 
Board of Supervisors.   
D) County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E) Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 











   

ARF-1813     Regular Agenda Item      3- J             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community
Development Division Director

Submitted By: Beverly Valenzuela, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Development Division

Department: Community Development Division Division: Community Development Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission Membership Changes

Background Information
On February 22, 2013, Ronnie O. McDaniel submitted his letter of resignation effective immediately. 

Mary Lou Myers' and Don Ascoli's terms of office expired on December 31, 2012, so in total there are
currently 3 vacancies on said Commission.

Evaluation
ARS §11-802.C In the counties having three supervisorial districts, each county planning and zoning
commission shall consist of nine members who shall be qualified electors of the county.  Three members
shall be appointed from each supervisorial district by the supervisor from that district, and not more
than one of the three may be a resident of an incorporated municipality.  Members of the commission
shall serve without compensation except for reasonable travel expenses.

Conclusion
Supervisor John Marcanti has recommended that Dawn Brunson be appointed to the Commission to
fulfill Ronnie McDaniel's unexpired term of office.  She will represent Supervisorial District 3.

Vice-Chairman Tommie Martin has recommended that Ray Jones be appointed to the Commission to fill
a vacancy, and this position will represent Supervisorial District 1.  She also has recommended that
Mary Lou Myers be reappointed to the Commission for another 4 years, retroactive to January 1, 2013. 

Recommendation
Supervisor Marcanti and Gila County Community Development Director Robert Gould recommend that
the Board of Supervisors appoint Dawn Brunson to the Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission
to complete the term vacated by Ronnie O. McDaniel.

Vice-Chairman Martin and Mr. Gould recommend that the the Board of Supervisors appoint Ray Jones
to fill a vacancy on the Commission, and reappoint Mary Lou Myers.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to acknowledge Ronnie McDaniel's resignation from the Gila County
Planning and Zoning Commission (Commission) effective February 22, 2013, and appoint Dawn
Brunson to the Commission to complete the term vacated by Ronnie O. McDaniel, effective May 7,
2013, through December 31, 2015; and to appoint Ray Jones to fill a vacancy, effective May 7, 2013,
through December 31, 2016; and further to reappoint Mary Lou Myers effective January 1, 2013,
through December 31, 2016.  (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Proposed P&Z Comm. Membership List
Letter of resignation for Ronnie McDaniel
ARS 11-802





 
GILA COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

(Proposed to BOS on 5/7/13 and if approved the list will be as follows) 
 

NAME OF MEMBER TYPE OF 
APPOINTMENT 

 
Mark with A, B, C, 
D or E – see below 

NEW APPOINTMENT OR REAPPOINTMENT 
(Include BOS approval date next to letter) 

New Appointment:  Choose “A” or “B” 
A -for existing vacancy or 
B -to fill a vacancy created by (provide name) 
or 
Reappointment:  Mark with a “C” and include 
number of years served prior to most recent 
appointment 

DATES OF TERM 
(Put the month, day and 
year both beginning and 

ending dates) 

LENGTH OF TERM  
(# of years) 

Mary Lou Myers A – District 1 C (05/07/13) 9 months 01/01/13-12/31/16 4 years 
Randy Slapnicka A – District 1 C (12/14/10) 7 months 01/01/11-12/31/14 4 years 
Don Ascoli A – District 1 C (09/09/08) 2 years 6 months 01/01/09-12/31/12 

TERM EXPIRED 
4 years 

Ray Jones A – District 1 A (05/07/13) - 05/07/13-12/31/16 3 years 7 months 
Lori Brown A – District 2 C (12/14/10) 4 years 6 months 01/01/11-12/31/14 4 years 
Jay Spehar A – District 2 C (12/14/10) 4 years 6 months 01/01/11-12/31/14 4 years 
Travis Williams A – District 2 C (12/14/10) 4 years 9 months 01/01/11-12/31/14 4 years 
Mickie Nye A – District 3 C (12/14/10) 3 years 11 months 01/01/11-12/31/14 4 years 
John “Jack” Larimore A – District 3 C (12/14/10) 4 years 6 months 01/01/11-12/31/14 4 years 
Ronnie McDaniel A – District 3 A (02/07/12) - 01/01/12-12/31/15 

RESIGNED EFF. 2/22/13 
4 years 

Dawn Brunson A – District 3 B (05/07/13) 
Ronnie McDaniel  

- 05/07/13-12/31/15 2 years, 7 months 

 
Appointment Designation Definitions: 
A) Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
 
B) Supervisor Appointment: Member unrestricted by district. 
 
C) Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the 
Board of Supervisors.   
 
D) County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
 
E) Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 



February 22, 2013 

John Marcanti 
Supervisor, District III 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 
1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 85501 

Dear Mr. Marcanti: 

Please accept this as formal notice of my resignation from the Gila County Planning and 
Zoning Commission effective immediately. 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve on this commission. 

Sincerely, 

Ronnie O. McDaniel 







   

ARF-1811     Regular Agenda Item      3- K             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel
Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian, Asst County
Manager/Library District

Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Provide comment regarding Tonto National Forest Draft Environmental Impact
Statement for Six Grazing Allotments along the Salt River.

Background Information
The Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS) documents environmental analysis
of the Salt River Allotments Vegetative Management Project. The DEIS was originally
published in the Federal Register on February 22, 2013, which opened a 45-day
public comment period. In response to requests for additional time, the Tonto National
Forest officials have extended the comment period an additional 30 days. Current
comment period closes on May 8, 2013.  

This process began with a Notice of Intent and scoping letter, published in the Federal
Register on June 2, 2011, and the Board of Supervisors provided official comments to
the scoping letter on June 28, 2011. 

Evaluation
The project proposes reauthorization of grazing along with comprehensive vegetation
management of Forest lands within six grazing allotments on Tonto Basin and Globe
ranger districts of the Tonto National Forest.  Alternatives analyzed include Alternative
1- No Action/No Grazing; Alternative 2- Current Management; Alternative 3- Proposed
Action; and Alternative 4- Wildlife Habitat Optimization.  Alternative 3 is the preferred
alternative and would use desired ecological conditions for vegetative groups within
the project area to set and make adjustments to grazing use, practices and strategies
while incorporating a range of additional vegetation management tools to help move
areas of concern toward desired conditions.  Tools include targeted grazing strategies,
fire management, fuels treatments, invasive weed treatments, and soils and vegetation
restoration. 
Salt River Allotments Vegetative Management Project encompasses 275,765 acres
along the Upper Salt River on the Globe and Tonto Basin ranger districts of Tonto
National Forest, Gila County, Arizona. The project area includes Chrysotile, Haystack
Butte, Sedow, and Hicks/Pikes Peak allotments on Globe Ranger District; and Dagger
and Poison Springs-Sierra Ancha allotments on Tonto Basin Ranger District. Action is
needed because authorizations for livestock grazing on these allotments have or will
soon expire and ecological conditions in some areas on these allotments have not
moved towards desired conditions as outlined in the Tonto National Forest Land
Management Plan. Additionally, current management plans do not contain adaptive
management strategies necessary to work effectively within changing climatic



conditions in the desert southwest. 

Tonto National Forest proposes to improve ecological conditions within the project
area using tools such as prescribed fire, fuels treatments, invasive weeds treatments,
and targeted grazing management and, pursuant to Forest Service Handbook (FSH)
2209.13, Chapter 90 section 92.22 to authorize continued livestock grazing on
National Forest System (NFS) lands. Livestock grazing would be authorized using
adaptive management as described in this document, with monitoring and mitigation
measures designed to improve resource conditions. Vegetation management tools
would be implemented in compliance with mitigation measures described in this
document to minimize undesirable effects and promote attainment of desired
conditions.

Conclusion
According to the DEIS, comments on the draft environmental impact statement
should be specific and should address the adequacy of the statement and merits of
the alternatives discussed (40 CFR 1503.3). Reviewers should provide the Forest
Service with their comments during the review period of the draft environmental
impact statement. This will enable the Forest Service to analyze and respond to
comments at one time and to use information acquired in the preparation of the final
environmental impact statement, thus avoiding undue delay in the decision making
process.

Comments received in response to this solicitation, including names and addresses of
those who comment, will become part of the public record for this proposed action.
Comments submitted anonymously will be accepted and considered; however,
anonymous comments will not provide the respondent with standing to participate in
subsequent administrative review or judicial review.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors consider issuing official comments to
this DEIS.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider issuing official comments from the Board
of Supervisors to the Tonto National Forest regarding the Draft Environmental Impact
Statement Salt River Allotments Vegetative Management Project. (Jacque Griffin)

Attachments
Proposed Comment Letter SR6 DEIS-jc.pdf



Phone (928) 425-3231 Fax (928) 425-0319            T.D.D. (928) 425-0839 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 7, 2013 
 
Tonto National Forest Supervisor’s Office 
Debbie Cress, Project Leader 
2324 E McDowell Rd. 
Phoenix, AZ  85006 
 
File Code 1950 

RE: Comments regarding “Salt River Allotments Vegetative Management Project Draft 
Environmental Impact Statement” 

 
Dear Ms. Cress, 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors would like to offer comments regarding the above referenced 
Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS).  We strongly support the reauthorization of grazing 
and the continued Multiple Use Management Philosophy, along with the inclusion of adaptive 
management strategies that allow the land managers to be flexible enough to make timely 
decisions relative to a host of ever changing conditions. 
 
While the preferred alternative (Alternative 3) does allow for livestock grazing, and utilizing 
adaptive management strategies, it does not address monitoring and economics.  The purpose of 
this letter is to address what we believe are deficiencies in an otherwise suitable alternative. 
 
With regard to monitoring, as briefly mentioned within the DEIS, Gila County suggests that the 
proposed directives on monitoring be expanded to include, in very specific terms, the requirements 
for quantitative, qualitative and effectiveness processes, resources allocation and funding, 
somewhat akin to the structured quality control plans and budgets common in the business world, 
to ensure that strategic monitoring plans are quantifiably and qualitatively implemented.   
Specifically, Gila County suggests that a very specific monitoring implementation plan and budget 
be added to the planning and NEPA review process of all projects and be submitted to public 
review and comments in the Draft Environmental Impact Statements (DEIS), as well as in the 
Records of Decisions (ROD) and the Final Environmental Impact Statements (FEIS), so as to ensure 
that monitoring will actually be implemented and funded. 

 
Practically, Gila County suggests a three tier monitoring plan, articulated as follows: 

 
1) Quantitative implementation compliance monitoring. 

Tommie C. Martin, District I 

610 E. Hwy 260, Payson, 85547 

(928) 474-2029 

tmartin@gilacountyaz.gov 

 

Michael A. Pastor, District II 

(928) 402-8753 

mpastor@gilacountyaz.gov  
 

John D. Marcanti, District III 

(928) 402-8726 

jmarcanti@gilacountyaz.gov  
 
 
 

 

Don E. McDaniel, Jr.  

County Manager 

(928) 402-4344 

dmcdaniel@gilacountyaz.gov 

 

 

Marian Sheppard 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

(928) 402-8757 

msheppard@gilacountyaz.gov 

  
 
 

 

GILA COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

1400 E. Ash Street 

Globe, Arizona 85501 
 

mailto:tmartin
mailto:mpastor@gilacountyaz.gov
mailto:jmarcanti@gilacountyaz.gov


Phone (928) 425-3231 Fax (928) 425-0319            T.D.D. (928) 425-0839 

The purpose of the quantitative implementation compliance monitoring is to answer the 
question “Was the job done?” While generally this assessment is made by the Forest Service 
contract management team when a contractor is involved, it is suggested that this step 
becomes the beginning of the process rather than what is often the end of it. 

 
Specific quantitative implementation compliance monitoring measures can be defined at the 
planning stage and specific resources requirements can be calculated at the planning stage. 
The plan must include, disclose and commit the responsible official to provide the resources 
and budget required. 

 
2) Qualitative implementation compliance monitoring. 

The purpose of the qualitative implementation compliance monitoring is to answer the 
question “Was the job done correctly?” The need for qualitative implementation monitoring 
increases rapidly with the complexity of the actions undertaken. For example, complex forest 
restoration prescriptions implemented using designation by description (DxD) or designation 
by prescription (DxP) create substantial room for interpretation by the operators and may 
result in outcomes substantially different on the ground from those intended by the resources 
specialists who write the prescriptions. Verifying that implementation complies not only 
quantitatively but qualitatively with the management decision is especially important when 
the third tier of monitoring is intended, as effectiveness can only be meaningfully analyzed if 
the actual treatment outcomes are aligned with the intended outcomes.  

 
Specific qualitative implementation compliance monitoring measures can be defined at the 
planning stage and specific resources requirements can be calculated at the planning stage. 
The plan must include, disclose and commit the responsible official to provide the resources 
and budget required. 

 
3) Effectiveness monitoring. 

The purpose of the effectiveness monitoring is to answer the question “Do the outcomes of 
the management decision produce the intended effects?” The need for effectiveness 
monitoring increases rapidly with the complexity and spatial and temporal scopes of the 
actions undertaken, especially in projects where cumulative effects analysis assumes a 
speculative nature owing to the scale and duration of the management action. For example, 
landscape scale forest restoration over 2 million acres in 20 years, as endeavored in the Four 
Forest Restoration Initiative --an initiative that Gila County was instrumental in creating and 
fostering -- is largely inconceivable without the concept of adaptive management, which we 
believe the Forest Service also recognizes. However, adaptive management is but an empty 
rhetoric, and any management action and the NEPA analysis thereof is flawed, if robust three 
tier monitoring as described here above is not implement. 

 
Specific effectiveness monitoring processes can be defined at the planning stage and specific 
resources requirements can be calculated at the planning stage. The plan must include, 
disclose and commit the responsible official to provide the resources and budget required. 

 
Gila County further suggests that in addition to the requirement for three functionally different and 
complementary tiers, the monitoring plan directives also include a new section possibly entitled 
Selection of Meaningful Monitoring Indicators, to specifically direct the responsible officials to 



Phone (928) 425-3231 Fax (928) 425-0319            T.D.D. (928) 425-0839 

include robust qualitative and effectiveness indicators, since easy to collect and process 
quantitative indicators -- such as acres treated, tons of biomass removed or forage utilization -- 
often yield very little meaningful information on the resulting health and resilience of a forest stand 
or the health and productivity of, for example, a grazing range. 
 
Multi-party monitoring 
 
As concerns multi-party monitoring, we ask that the USFS specifically consider the established 
monitoring project covering nearly all of Gila County’s portion of the USFS which consists of nearly 
10 years of data already gathered and assimilated and the associated protocols used with the 
current “Reading the Range” Program established by the University of Arizona under the leadership 
of Dr. Jim Sprinkle. Gila County also suggests that the proposed directives on multi-party 
monitoring be expanded to include, in very specific terms, the requirements for the responsible 
officials to be bound by the findings of multi-party monitoring boards. 
 
Gila County has been on the receiving end on numerous occasions of the classic retort “…such 
dispositions would violate the Federal Advisory Committee Act (FACA)…” or “…federal line officials 
are not authorized to share their decision making authority…” and, therefore, fully appreciates and 
understands such restrictions.  However, it is not suggested here that responsible officials 
surrender their decision making authority to a multi-party monitoring board but, instead, should be 
required to act upon the findings of a multi-party monitoring board in a manner that appropriately 
addresses the issues raised by the multi-party monitoring board. 

       
This DEIS does not seem to adequately address the true economic impact to the affected area. Page 
200 (of 314) seems only to address the federal government’s Payments in Lieu of Taxes and the 
Secure Rural Schools and Community Self Determination Act of 2000 as though those are the only 
economic considerations beyond the fiscal benefits of recreational activity.  In Gila County, we 
recognize and understand the importance of protecting our natural resources while still providing 
opportunities and access by the public not only for multiple use, multi-cultural activities, and multi-
recreational opportunities, but also for those whose livelihoods depend on resources located on 
these federal lands. We are a rural county with a population of 53,144, 12% of which are 
unemployed and 21% are living at or below 200% of the federal poverty level.   
 
Historically, our economy and our residents have depended heavily upon resource-based industries 
and, more recently, upon recreation opportunities on federal land.  We believe that we can be 
diligent in our responsibility to take care of the land and still preserve those activities which allow 
the land to take care of us as it has throughout our history.  Over-protective federal land policies 
create an unsustainable environment for our western culture and economy. 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors thanks you for the opportunity to comment and requests to 

be kept informed and included in the process as this analysis continues. 

 
 
 
Michael A Pastor, Chairman 
Gila County Board of Supervisors     
 



   

ARF-1818     Regular Agenda Item      3- L             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Mike Pastor,
Member, Board
of Supervisors

Submitted By: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager,
County Manager

Department: Board of Supervisors-District 2
Fiscal Year: 2013 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 2013 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Hosting County Supervisors Association 2014 Legislative Summit in
October 2013

Background Information
Each year a different County hosts the County Supervisors Association (CSA) Annual
Legislative Summit. CSA has contacted Gila County to host the 2014 Summit in
October of 2013. The host county is usually responsible to pay for dinner and other
incidental costs associated with hosting a conference. Supervisor Martin has
suggested that the Summit be held in Payson and has had some preliminary
discussions with CSA about hotels/conference centers and restaurants.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
We should take this opportunity to host the annual summit and showcase Gila
County's beauty and hospitality. This is attended by all Arizona counties and regarded
as the most significant CSA meeting of the year. A host committee has been formed
consisting of Jacque Griffin, Janice Cook, Pam Fisher, Sherry Grice and Marilyn
Brewer and they met with CSA staff in Payson on May 2nd to begin the organizing and
planning process.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors agree to host the 2014 CSA
Legislative Summit on October 14-16, 2013, in Payson, Arizona and that the staff host
committee organize and plan the events in conjunction with CSA.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to agree to host the the 2014 County Supervisors



Information/Discussion/Action to agree to host the the 2014 County Supervisors
Association (CSA) Legislative Summit on October 14-16, 2013, in Payson, Arizona, and
instruct the host committee to organize the events in conjunction with CSA.  
(Michael Pastor)



   

ARF-1800     Regular Agenda Item      3- M             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting
Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk,
BOS, Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
A sealed bid submitted for the purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 302-60-193

Background Information
On July 8, 2003, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 03-06-07, which
established a policy regarding sales of real property tax deeded to the State of
Arizona.  Any parcels of land not sold at the Supervisors' annual property tax sale for
the year in which the property was deeded to the State of Arizona is added to the
County's "Back Tax Land List."  This list of available properties is advertised on the
County's website for purchase through the County's sealed bid process.  Anyone may
submit a sealed bid to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Department.  The
parcel information will be reviewed by the Clerk, Assessor and Treasurer and
ultimately placed on a Board of Supervisors' meeting agenda at which time the sealed
bid envelope will be opened during a public meeting.  The Board will then accept or
deny the bid.  If the bid is accepted, the successful bidder must submit payment to
the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Department within 48 hours of being notified of
the winning bid.  A quit claim deed will then be issued to the successful bidder
transferring ownership of the property.  

Evaluation
It is in the County's best interest to make every attempt to sell these parcels of land
which have been deeded to the State of Arizona in order to get the parcels back on the
County tax rolls and to relieve the County of the administrative oversight for each
parcel of land. 

The County's sealed bid process allows one exception to the requirement that a bidder
must submit a bid amount of no less than the total lien amount.  A bidder may submit
a bid less than the total lien amount if at the time they submit their bid to the Clerk,
they can provide written proof of ownership of land which adjoins the parcel of land
for which a bid is being submitted.  At the time the sealed bid is presented to
the Board of Supervisors, the Board may consider accepting a bid that is lower than
the total lien amount.

With regard to the bid on this parcel of land, the bidders have provided proof of



With regard to the bid on this parcel of land, the bidders have provided proof of
ownership of land which adjoins the subject parcel.  The subject parcel of land is
vacant and it is a drainage area located in Payson.  It was deeded to the State of
Arizona in 2011 by the Gila County Treasurer and the total lien amount is $873.38.

Conclusion
It is in the County's best interest for the Board of Supervisors to consider this offer for
this parcel of State-owned land.   

If the Board of Supervisors accepts the bidders' offer, the bidders have agreed to
combine the parcels once they receive the quit claim deed.  This will be a win-win
situation for both the bidders and the County.  It will save time and money for both
the Treasurer's Office and Assessor's Office and because this is a vacant lot, the
subject property will be reduced from a 16% tax ratio to a 10% tax ratio.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors consider the offer for the purchase of
this property.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the purchase of Assessor's
tax parcel number 302-60-193.  (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
Bid Form on Parcel No. 302-60-193
Assessor's Info on Parcel No. 302-60-193
Backup Info on Parcel No. 301-60-193























   

ARF-1799     Regular Agenda Item      3- N             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting
Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS,
Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
A sealed bid submitted for the purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 208-11-017

Background Information
On July 8, 2003, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 03-06-07, which
established a policy regarding sales of real property tax deeded to the State of
Arizona.  Any parcels of land not sold at the Supervisors' annual property tax sale for
the year in which the property was deeded to the State of Arizona is added to the
County's "Back Tax Land List."  This list of available properties is advertised on the
County's website for purchase through the County's sealed bid process.  Anyone may
submit a sealed bid to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Department.  The
parcel information will be reviewed by the Clerk, Assessor and Treasurer and
ultimately placed on a Board of Supervisors' meeting agenda at which time the sealed
bid envelope will be opened during a public meeting.  The Board will then accept or
deny the bid.  If the bid is accepted, the successful bidder must submit payment to
the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Department within 48 hours of being notified of
the winning bid.  A quit claim deed will then be issued to the successful bidder
transferring ownership of the property.  

Evaluation
It is in the County's best interest to make every attempt to sell these parcels of land
which have been deeded to the State of Arizona in order to get the parcels back on the
County tax rolls and to relieve the County of the administrative oversight for each
parcel of land.

The subject parcel of land is located at 111 Central Avenue in Globe and it has a
run-down, abandoned home upon the lot.   The County Treasurer deeded this
property to the State of Arizona in 2012.  The total tax lien amount is $5,981.47.

Conclusion
It is in the County's best interest for the Board of Supervisors to consider the offier for
this parcel of State-owned land.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors consider the offer for the purchase of
this property.



Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the purchase of Assessor's
tax parcel number 208-11-017.  (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
Bid Form on Parcel No. 208-11-017
Assessor's Info on Parcel No. 208-11-017
Backup Info on Parcel No. 208-11-017





















   

ARF-1803     Consent Agenda Item      4- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Community
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Executive
Administrative Assistant, Community
Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2012-2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2012 - June 30,
2013

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. 0010-0444 with Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on
Aging, Region V.

Background Information
Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens, Inc. (PGCSC) is designated by the State of Arizona as an Area
Agency on Aging.  PGCSC is part of a national network of more than 650 organizations established
under the Older Americans Act.

As an Area Agency on Aging, PGCSC responds to community needs through a comprehensive planning
process.  PGCSC provides services and programs directly or through contracts with local service
providers to assist older adults and adults with disabilities to remain in their home as long as possible. 
To assure an effective and efficient service delivery system, PGCSC monitors its contractors and the
service provided and provides technical assistance and support as needed.

Contract No. 0010-0444 with the Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens was approved by the Board of
Supervisors on July 28, 2009.
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 0010-0444 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on July 27,
2010.
Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 0010-0444 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on April 19,
2011
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 0010-0444 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on July 20,
2011.
Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. 0010-0444 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on August 20,
2012.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. 0010-0444 will allocate funding in the amount of $10,623 to the Gila
County Community Action Program/Housing Services, to provide minor home repairs to eligible citizens
residing in Gila County.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. 0010-0444, the Gila County
Community Action Program/Housing Services will continue to provide minor home repair services to
eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Recommendation
The Community Services Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this contract



The Community Services Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this contract
amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. 0010-0444 between the Pinal-Gila Council for Senior
Citizens Area Agency on Aging, Region V (PGCSC), and the Gila County Division of Community Services,
Community Action Program/Housing Services, whereby PGCSC will allocate funding in the amount of
$10,623 to provide minor home repairs to eligible citizens residing in Gila County, effective on the date
of the last signature through June 30, 2013.

Attachments
Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council
Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. 0010-0444
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 0010-0444
Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 0010-0444
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council
Original Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens
Legal Explanation



cbejaran
Typewritten Text

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
Michael A. Pastor

cbejaran
Typewritten Text
Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors



























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-1796     Consent Agenda Item      4- B             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of
Prevention Services

Submitted By: Sarah White, Executive Administrative
Assistant, Health & Emergency Services
Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2013 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

August 1, 2012-July 31, 2017 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-028437) with the Arizona Department
of Health Services.

Background Information
On August 20, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS13-028437) between the Gila County Health Department and the Arizona Department of Health Services
(ADHS) to provide the Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting program services in the amount of
$238,000 for the contract period of August 1, 2012, through July 31, 2017.

Amendment No. 1 changes the price sheet as outlined on page 26 of the original Contract No. ADHS13-028437
effective January 1, 2013. The overall budget is reduced to $105,000 based on previous spending over past
years.  The changes will decrease the professional and outside services by $139,000, the travel expenses will
increase by $1,000, and the indirect expenses will increase by $5,000.

Evaluation
By continuing to provide the Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting program services, the Gila County
Health Department will continue to support local “target communities” to build capacity to provide home visiting
services to at-risk families. The Gila County Health Department will support coordinated home visiting service
delivery, sharing of resources and information, and efficiently referring community members across programs.

Conclusion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-028437) will allow the Gila
County Health Department to continue to provide the Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting program
services to the residents of Gila County.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Director of Health and Emergency Services that the Board of Supervisors approve
Amendment No. 1 to the Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-028437) between Gila County and the
Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $105,000 to continue to provide Maternal, Infant, and Early
Childhood Home Visiting program services for the period of August 1, 2012 through July 31, 2017.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-028437) in the amount of
$105,000 that is between Gila County and the Arizona Department of Health Services changing the Price Sheet
section of the contract effective January 1, 2013, to provide maternal, infant, and early childhood home visiting
services through July 31, 2017.

Attachments
Amendment No. 1
Original Contract
Legal Explanation



1  

 
 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 
AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 W. Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 Fax 

Contract No: ADHS13-028437 Amendment No. 1 
Senior Procurement Specialist 

Tracy Chisler / KH 
 

Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting 
 

It is mutually agreed that the Intergovernmental Agreement referenced is amended as follows: 

 
1. Effective January 1, 2013, replace the revised Price Sheet, Page Twenty-six (26) of the original Contract, 

with the revised Price Sheet, Page Two (2) of Amendment One (1). The Budget is reduced to $105,000.00 
based  on previous  spending  over  past  years. The revised Price Sheet includes the following line item 

changes which will be updated in the Items Tab of the ProcureAZ system for this Contract after execution of 
this Amendment. 

 
a. Professional & Outside Services will decrease by $139,000.00 due to the start-up cost not being 

included for contractor services as it was the previous year. 
 

b. Travel Expenses will increase by $1,000.00 to support additional travel for the home visiting coordinator 
in Gila County. The home visiting coordinator will be traveling longer distances to reach rural areas of 
their assigned Community Health Assessment Area (CHAA). 

 
c. Indirect Expenses will increase by $5,000.00 due to staff being added to provide more service. 

 

All other provisions of this agreement remain unchanged. 
CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE 

 

 

Gila County Health Department 
Contractor Name 

 
5515 South Apache Avenue, Suite 100 
Address 

 
Contractor Authorized Signature 

 

Michael A. Pastor 
Printed Name 

 

Globe AZ 85501           Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors 
City State Zip Title 

 
CONTRACTOR ATTORNEY SIGNATURE 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the undersigned public agency attorney 

has determined that this Intergovernmental Agreement is in proper 
form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of 

the State of Arizona. 
 

 
 
 

Signature Date 

 

This Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment shall be effective the 
date indicated. The Public Agency is hereby cautioned not to commence 
any billable work or provide any material, service or construction under 

this IGA until the IGA has been executed by an authorized ADHS 
signatory. 

State of Arizona 
 

 
Signed this              day of                                               2013 

 Bryan Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal 
Printed Name Procurement Officer 

 

RESERVED FOR USE BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Attorney General Contract No. P0012012000033, which is an 

Agreement between public agencies, has been reviewed pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 11-952 by the undersigned Assistant Attorney General, who 
has determined that it is in proper form and is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 

 
Signature Date 

Assistant Attorney General 
 

Printed Name: 

 

Under House Bill 2011, A.R.S. § 11-952 was 

amended to remove the requirement that 

Intergovernmental Agreements be filed with 

the Secretary of State. 



2  

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 
AMENDMENT 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 W. Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 Fax 

 

Contract No: ADHS13-028437 
 

Amendment No. 1 
Senior Procurement Specialist 

Tracy Chisler / KH 
 
 

PRICE SHEET 

GILA COUNTY IGA for MIECHV 
 

 
 

Cost Reimbursement Line Items 
 

Budget Amount 

 

Personnel Services 
 

$80,000.00 

 

Professional & Outside Services 
 

$10,000.00 

 

Travel Expenses 
 

$6,000.00 

 

Other Operating Expense 
 

$2,000.00 

 

Capital Outlay Expense 
 

$2,000.00 

 

Indirect (If authorized) 
 

$5,000.00 

 

Total Contract Amount 
 

$105,000.00 

 

ITEMIZED SERVICE BUDGET (ISB) RESTRICTIONS: 

 
• The Contractor is authorized to transfer up to a maximum of ten percent (10%) of the total 

Contract amount among the categorical line items. Transfers of funds are only allowed among 
funded line items as detailed in the original ISB. Transfers exceeding ten percent (10%) of the 
contracted amount or to a non-funded line item shall require a Contract Amendment. 

 
• Indirect Costs shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the combined total of Personnel Services 

and Employee Related Expenses as listed on the ISB. For more detailed information regarding 
indirect costs, refer to the Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual for Contractors of ADHS 
Funded Programs. This manual is incorporated into this Contract by reference herein 























































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-1782     Consent Agenda Item      4- C             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of
Prevention Services

Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of
Prevention Services, Health &
Emergency Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Prevention Services
Fiscal Year: 2013-2014 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Renewal of Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. GRA-RC004-13-0556-01 with First Things First.

Background Information
The original Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. GRA-RC004-13-0556-01, which allowed the Gila County
Health Department to provide the Healthy Steps Program, was approved by the Board of Supervisors on September
18, 2012, in the amount of $155,000.  The contract period of the original contract is from October 1, 2012, through
June 30, 2013. The renewal of Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. GRA-RC004-13-0556-01, is for the period
of July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014 in the amount of $190,000.

Evaluation
The Healthly Steps Program provides support, information and education to families on the practices and
community resources related to family health and child development.

Conclusion
Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. GRA-RC004-13-0556-01, will alllow the Gila County Health
Department to continue the Healthy Steps Program.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Director of Health and Emergency Services that the Board of Supervisors approve
the renewal of Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. GRA-RC004-13-0556-01 between Gila County and First
Things First in the amount of $190,000 to continue to provide Healthy Steps Program services for the period of July
1, 2013, through June 30, 2014.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the renewal of Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. GRA-RC004-13-0556-01 between Gila County
and First Things First in the amount of $190,000 to continue to provide the Healthy Steps Program services for the
period of July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014.

Attachments
Renewal Contract
Original Contract



FIRST THINGS FIRST NOTICE OF RENEWAL CONSIDERATION

DATE: March 8, 2013

TO: Gila County Health Department

FROM: Maria A. Soto
Fiscal Specialist

RE: Renewal Information

Fiscal Year 2013 grant awards are approaching renewal consideration from the First Things First Gila
Regional Partnership Council. Receipt of this packet does not guarantee renewal of the grant award; it 
indicates eligibility for renewal consideration. First Things First may renew grant awards based on a 
number of factors including past performance and response to this renewal package.  

If renewed, you will continue to be responsible for adherence to all terms and conditions set forth in the 
original Request for Grant Application (RFGA) or grant agreement. This includes compliance with the 
appropriate standards of practice; program implementation; as well as timely submission of data and 
narrative reports and financial reimbursements. 

Attached, please find the renewal package for First Things First Grant Programs that includes 
instructions and the following attachments:

Attachment A - Program Implementation Questions
Attachment B - Program Implementation Plan
Attachment C - Line Item Budget and Budget Narrative
Attachment D - Key Personnel
Attachment E - Disclosure of Other Funding
Attachment F - First Things First Standard Agency Information Collection Form 
Attachment G - Data Security Guidelines and Requirements for Collaborators (revised)

After completing Attachments A – F and submitting them to First Things First, the package will be 
reviewed and funding recommendations will be made to the Gila Regional Partnership Council as well as 
the Board of First Things First.  First Things First staff may contact you for clarifications prior to making 
recommendations to the Regional Partnership Council and/or Board of First Things First. Grant awards 
will be in effect from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014. All other rules and regulations, and special 
terms and conditions from awarding RFGA or grant agreement will remain in effect for the contract 
period.

Renewal packages must be received by April 1, 2013 by 3:00pm and submitted to my attention via 
email, msoto@azftf.gov, or standard mail, to 4000 N. Central Avenue, Suite 800, Phoenix, AZ 85012.  For 
questions, please contact me via email or at (602) 771-5083.

Thank you.



1

First Things First 
Grant Renewal Package Instructions

July 1, 2013 – June 30, 2014

Your First Things First (FTF) grant is eligible for a program renewal by extending the previous 2013 fiscal 
year grant award. Programs proposed for the 2014 fiscal year cannot be different in scope than the 
previous grant award.  

Grantee Name: Gila County Health Department
FTF Grant Number: GRA-RC004-13-0556-01
Strategy Name: Care Coordination/Medical Home
Data Template(s) Assigned: Care Coordination /Medical Home   Developmental and Sensory 

Screening
Eligible Renewal Amount: $190,000.00

The amount is subject to change pending legal and procurement review at 
First Things First.  If a different amount is approved for renewal, an updated 
line item budget & budget narrative will be required.

The renewal package includes the completion and submission of Attachments A-F.  Attachment G, Data 
Security Guidelines, has been revised and replaces previous versions.

Program Implementation Questions (Attachment A)
Provide a narrative response to each question in Attachment A.

Program Implementation Plan (Attachment B)
Provide an updated implementation plan for the 2014 fiscal year.  The implementation plan should be 
related to the originally approved program activities, tasks, data collection, data submission, and 
process.

2014 Budget Forms (Attachment C – must include both the line item budget and budget narrative)

Key Personnel (Attachment D)
List all staff that will be paid from this grant program during the 2014 grant cycle.  This should match 
your line item budget and budget narrative.  Submit resumes and/or staff change notification forms for 
new staff or those that have not yet been submitted to First Things First previously. The staff change 
notification form is located under the Grantee Resources folder on the Partner Grant Management 
System (PGMS) home page.

Disclosure of Other Funding Sources (Attachment E)
List any other funding utilized for this program administered by your agency.

First Things First Standard Agency Information Collection Form (Attachment F)
Please complete all sections detailing:

 The main, program, financial and evaluation contact information for PGMS access to the 
2014 grant.

 The Target Service Number(s) to be served/completed in 2014 for all identified strategies.
 A brief program description to be used for public descriptions of First Things First funded 

programs.



2

Standards of Practice Updates: Utilizing the standards of practice are part of the requirements for the 
award and implementation of your grant program. They represent FTF’s intent for the implementation 
of a specific strategy. Prior authorization is needed if the program deviates from the standards of 
practice. Grantees are responsible for reviewing and implementing the most recent updates to the 
standards of practice, located in the FTF Strategy Toolkit.  

Model Programs that Require Certification and Accreditation: It is the grantee’s responsibility to 
maintain accreditation/certification with national program models. Grantees are to include staff 
training, program model accreditation/certification and quality assurance and evaluation costs in 
budgets, as needed. Programs will need to refer to their national office and/or administrative home for 
cost information, if applicable.

Compliance with State and Federal Law: As a reminder, all other state rules, regulations, and special 
terms and conditions will remain in effect for the grant period. This renewal application information 
becomes part of the agreement and expectations for program implementation and performance. A 
complete listing of the state uniform terms and conditions can be found via the State Procurement 
Office website at: http://spo.az.gov/Admin_Policy/SPM/Forms/default.asp. Additionally, First Things 
First will post any applicable grantee requirement and updated Communications Protocol information 
under the Grantee Resources folder in PGMS.

Grantees must maintain compliance with the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act (FINA) and all 
other federal immigration laws and regulations related to the immigration status of its employees. 
These warranties shall remain in effect through the term of the agreement. Grantees will also maintain 
Employment Eligibility Verification forms (I-9) as required by the U.S. Department of Labor’s Immigration 
and Control Act for all employees performing work under the agreement. I-9 forms are available for 
download at USCIS.GOV.

First Things First may request verification for any grantee or subgrantee performing work under the 
agreement. Should FTF suspect or find that a grantee is not in compliance with state or federal laws, 
First Things First may pursue any and all remedies allowed by law, including, but not limited to:  
suspension of work, termination of the agreement for default and suspension and/or debarment of the 
grantee. All costs necessary to verify compliance are the responsibility of the grantee.

Data Security: All grantees must have a data security policy in force, which identifies how the 
organization ensures that data is protected in all its forms, during all phases of its life cycle, from 
inappropriate access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction. All grantees subject to HIPAA, FERPA, 
GITA, or other data regulation, are required to submit and maintain those approvals for all data. Refer to 
Attachment G, Data Security Guidelines and Requirements for Collaborators, for more information.

Program Performance and Data Reporting Requirement Updates: First Things First provides program 
information to the public, Regional Partnership Councils, and the Board of First Things First. The 
information regularly provided to the Regional Partnership Councils and Board of First Things First 
include proposed renewal information; submission of data related to performance measures and target 
service units; prior program performance; information provided in program narrative reports; and 
financial/expenditure information. Regional Partnership Councils utilize this information to continue 
strategic planning efforts and identify annual funding priorities; to assist with renewal decisions; to 
develop new or modified strategies; to review the impact that programs have had in the region and 
state; as well as achievements in system building.

Grantee Data Reporting Requirements are identified in each grant and can be accessed in the



3

FTF Strategy Toolkit. Please review the latest Data Reporting Requirements in preparation for 
implementation upon grant renewal.

Renewal Package Due Date:  The renewal package must be received by April 1, 2013at 3:00pm and 
submitted via email or standard mail: 

Maria A. Soto, Fiscal Specialist
First Things First
4000 N. Central
Phoenix, AZ  85012
msoto@azftf.gov 
(602) 771-5083

Or

Marjorie Bennett, Fiscal Specialist
First Things First
4000 N. Central
Phoenix, AZ  85012
mbennett@azftf.gov 
(602) 771-5084



4

Attachment A
Program Implementation Questions

Provide a narrative response to the questions below.  To ensure that you are not changing the scope of 
work of your original grant, you must use the same programs and/or strategies as described in your 
original proposal, unless you have obtained prior approval. 

1. Provide a brief narrative description of your proposed program that will be implemented in 
SFY14. This description should match information provided in your Implementation Plan 
(Attachment B) and explain anything from the Implementation Plan needing additional 
description.

Gila County Healthy Steps Program will implement the National Healthy Steps model to provide care 
coordination to children and their families.  Services will be provided in Globe and Payson with a full 
time staff person in each city.  The model implemented will be the Community Based program that 
collaborates with various partners in the community to provide services to children.  Initial contacts 
will be made with many families in the hospital.  Other families’ first contact with the program may 
be from the Family Access Developmental Screening Program or their well child care providers 
referral.   The program will partner with local hospitals, Payson Christian Clinic, Community 
Physicans, Canyonlands Clinic as well as the County Immunization Clinic and the WIC Program.  The 
program will provide the services as outlined in the National Healthy Steps model as well as meeting 
the components of the Scope of Work and Standards of practice included in this document.  The 
program will provide home visits at birth and key developmental stages when appropriate to meet 
the needs of the families and their children.   We have identified 200 as the number of children birth 
to five. The program will consist of a .25 Program Manager who will oversee the two full time 
program coordinators housed in Globe and Payson.  The program will serve as the lead agency to 
implement the ASQ Enterprise and Family Access Program within the Healthy Steps Program. In 
addition the program will develop a plan to implement the Enterprise System region-wide through 
community partners that provide services to children birth to five. The goal of the program is to 
provide parent education, identification of delays and coordination of care for all children who 
reside in Gila County, and to assist with creating a medical home.  Training for staff will utilize a 
combination of the National Healthy Steps training as well as on-going training and support of the 
Arizona Healthy Steps Program trainers.  Intensive training will be provided during the first grant 
period to insure the success of the program and model fidelity.  

Consider the following for inclusion in the narrative description:

a) If your program received approved modifications, please describe how those 
modifications will continue to be implemented in SFY 2014. NONE

b) If you have proposed modifications moving forward, please describe how they will 
enhance program implementation and/or why they are necessary for the program to be 
successful in the upcoming fiscal year. NONE

c) If there are no modifications or no planned modifications, please indicate no 
modifications necessary and provide a brief description of the existing program 
implementation. NONE



5

2. Please describe current and ongoing plans for data collection and submission, 
including how your program is using data to promote optimal service and ongoing 
improvement.

We plan to capture the reporting requirements in an electronic data base which our County 
IT has password protected software in place to ensure confidentiality. The staff our familiar 
with reporting requirements of First Things First.

We plan to purchase the ASQ online enterprise system and begin implementation upon 
completion of the Healthy Steps training.  After the staff become super-users of the on-line 
system, we will attempt to collaborate with other programs to use the on-line system.  
Healthy Steps staff will be the technical support for the ASQ online system.  The 
Developmental Screening Program set up will meet all of the requirements outlined in the 
scope of work including community collaboration and reporting to the Regional Council.

3. Describe how you anticipate being better able to achieve your proposed target service units.
The problem we had in the first grant period was receiving qualified applicants to fill the needed 
staff positions.  We will provide the following once all staff have been hired and appropriately 
trained;

 Unit of service will be 200 unduplicated children birth to five and their families 
in Gila County receiving ongoing Healthy Steps support.

 200 children will receive ASQ and ASQ-SE developmental screening either 
through the Parent Access Program or screenings conducted by the Healthy 
Steps Specialist.  The program will screen children at key developmental 
milestone with a target of 400 screens and appropriate follow-up.  

4. Please describe how you will ensure target service numbers will be met in the next SFY 
implementation of this First Things First grant award.
We have been assured by the National Healthy Steps Trainer that once the appropriate staff is in 
place the program will be very successful.  We currently hired one program coordinator in the 
Globe area.  She will begin the program after the initial Gila County training and the Healthy 
Steps training.  The Healthy Steps trainer will come to Globe to do one on one training which will 
take up to one week.  The program coordinator for the Payson office is still in the recruitment 
process.  We have posted and sent the job description to many of the early childhood network 
members in the Payson-area.  After the initial training we plan to have the program coordinators 
attend early childhood network meetings and introduce their program to all agencies which 
service the same population. Advertisements will be placed in local papers and flyers will be 
distributed to all offices that provide service to pregnant and post partum women.  The Gila 
County Website will have a page created to advertise the program and connect the page to 
other early childhood websites.  The program coordinators will be required to build 
collaborations with the OB/GYN clinics, Pediatrician, family practitioners and both hospitals 
located in Gila County.The program coordinators will supply a referral form to all other agencies 
to use and provide to all clients.  

5. Please provide an update on the Online Developmental Screening implementation and a copy 
of the plan as required in the initial scope of work.

Phase 1:
           Gila County Health Department



6

Healthy Steps, Health Start, Home Visitation, Nursing, Gila County WIC, Gila County Well 
Baby Clinic, Gila County Well Baby Program

Phase 2: 
Hospitals

                       Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center, Payson Regional Medical Center
           Non-Governmental Organizations

Head Start, Early Head Start, Horizon Human Services, Arizona’s Children Association, 
ChildHelp AZ

Phase 3:
           Public Schools

Globe USD, Hayden-Winkleman SD, Miami USD, Payson USD, Pine Elementary SD, Tonto 
Basin SD, Young Public SD, San Carlos USD, Gila County Regional School District

6. Please describe how you will reach 200 units of service for children served and 200 children 
screened using the online developmental screening program in SFY14 implementation; and 
how you will address barriers to ensure success.
We have been trying to recruit two workers with the correct qualifications to apply and 
accept the Healthy Steps Coordinator positions.  The barriers we have faced with the 
application process are lack of applicants possessing a bachelor’s degree in a specific 
field which is required by “Healthy Steps” model.  We have been very proactive is the 
recruitment process.  The units of service will not be a problem once staff are fully 
trained and begin implementation.

The barriers we believe may arise will be the participation from one of the hospitals in 
the area and marketing the program to let the community know about the services that 
will be available.  The plan to address the above barriers will be to collaborate with 
existing staff currently working with the hospital.   Outreach and marketing will be a 
priority in the initial stages of the program.  The personnel required for the program will 
be compensated at a higher level which will entrust we will get a good selection of 
applicants in which to pick from.  



7

Attachment B
Program Implementation Plan

2014

A ct iv i t ie s Task Perso n Res po ns ib le
Date  T ask  Wi l l  Be  

Com ple ted / Ti mel ine
Preparation C o n t in u e  t o  re c r u i t  n e w  e m p lo y e e s  

fo r  H e a l th y  S t e p s  P r o g ra m  
C o o r d i n a to r

H R/ P ro g ra m  
M a n a g e r/ D e p u t y  
D i re c t o r

H o p e fu l l y  p r i o r  t o  s ta r t  
o f  g ra n t  c y c le -
u n d e t e rm in e d

P u rc h a s e  s u p p l ie s
P ro g ra m  C o o rd in a t o r s O n g o in g

Training
S c h e d u le  t ra in in g  w i th  N a t i o n a l  
H e a l th y  S te p s  p r o g r a m

P ro g ra m  M a n a g e r W h e n  t ra i n i n g  i s  
a v a i l a b le  f o r  o u t - o f -
s ta t e

O n e - o n - o n e  t ra in in g  w i t h  H e a l th y  
S te p s  c o n s u l ta n ts

P ro g ra m  
C o o r d i n a to rs / P ro g r a m  
M a n a g e r

O n - g o i n g

A S Q  o n l in e  s y s te m P ro g ra m  C o o rd in a t o r s O n - g o i n g

O u tr e a c h U t i l i z e  N a t i o n a l  H e a l t h y  S t e p s  
o u tr e a c h  e d u c a t io n  a n d  in fo rm a t io n  
b ro c h u r e s / p a m p h le ts / fa c t  s h e e ts

P ro g ra m  
C o o r d i n a to rs / P ro g r a m
M a n a g e r

O n - g o i n g

A S Q - o n l in e  s y s t e m  e n t e r p r i s e P ro g ra m  M a n a g e r O n - g o i n g

F o rm a t  th e  p ro g ra m  d e s c r ip t io n  fo r  
D iv i s i o n a l  b r o c h u re s / W e b s i t e s / f l y e r  
to b e  d i s t r ib u te d

P ro g ra m  C o o rd in a t o r s O n - g o i n g

Implementation H o m e  v i s i t s / h o s p i ta l  v i s i t s / i n - o f f i c e  
v i s i t s / s o c i a l  g ro u p  s e t t i n g s  t o  
fa m i l i e s  i n  G i la  C o u n t y  

P ro g ra m  C o o rd in a t o r s O n - g o i n g

C o l la b o r a t io n  w i t h  lo c a l  p e d i a t r i c i a n s  
a n d  fa m i l y  d o c t o r s  th a t  p r o v id e  
s e r v i c e  to  c h i ld re n  b i r t h  to  f i v e .

P ro g ra m  
M a n a g e r/ P r o g r a m  
C o o r d i n a to rs

O n - g o i n g  to  b u i l d  
c a p a c i t y

P ro v id e  e d u c a t io n  t o  p a re n t s  o n  c h i ld  
d e v e l o p m e n t ,  l i te ra c y ,  p a re n t i n g ,  a n d  
re fe r r a l  f o r  o th e r  s u p p o r t in g  
re s o u rc e s

P ro g ra m  
M a n a g e r/ P r o g r a m  
C o o r d i n a to rs

O n - g o i n g

F o l lo w - u p

I m p le m e n t a t io n

A p p r o p r i a t e  re fe r ra l s P ro g ra m  
M a n a g e r/ P r o g r a m  
C o o r d i n a to rs

A t  t im e  o f  v i s i t

Re v i e w  w i t h  p h y s i c ia n t o  p r o v id e  
fa m i ly  w i th  a  t e a m  a p p r o a c h  f o r  
h e a l t h y  d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  th e i r  c h i l d

P ro g ra m  
M a n a g e r/ P r o g r a m  
C o o r d i n a to rs

O n - g o i n g

D e v e l o p m e n t a l  s c r e e n i n g  r e f e r ra l s P ro g ra m  
M a n a g e r/ P r o g r a m  
C o o r d i n a to r

O n - g o i n g

E n s u re  a l l  r e p o r ts  a r e  p r o v id e d  to  F T F  
in  a  t im e l y  m a n n e r .

P ro g ra m  M a n a g e r O n - g o i n g  

P u rc h a s e  a n d  im p le m e n t  th e  A S Q - 3  
a n d  A S Q - S E  O n l in e  E n te rp r i s e  s y s te m  
a n d  p a re n t  a c c e s s  s y s te m .   

P ro g ra m  M a n a g e r Ju n e  1 , 2 0 1 3



8

S e t  u p  t h e  P a r e n t  a c c e s s  a n d  
E n te rp r i s e  s y s te m s  f o r  u s e  a n d  t r a i n  
s ta f f .

P ro g ra m  
M a n a g e r/ P r o g r a m  
C o o r d i n a to rs

Ju n e 1 ,  2 0 1 3

C o l la b o r a t e  w i t h  F i r s t  T h in g s  F i r s t  
S ta f f  a n d  G i la  Re g io n a l  C o u n c i l  to  
c o n v e n e  c o m m u n i ty  s ta ke h o l d e r s  to
d i s c u s s  e x p a n s i o n  o f  th e  E n t e rp r i s e  
s y s t e m  a c ro s s  t h e  r e g io n .

P ro g ra m  M a n a g e r M a y  3 0 ,  2 0 1 3

P re p a r e  a  r e p o r t  fo r  th e  Re g i o n  
C o u n c i l  o n  t h e  p i l o t  im p le m e n ta t io n  
o f  t h e  o n - l i n e  s y s te m  a n d  p l a n s f o r  
e x p a n s io n  to  c o m m u n i ty  p a r tn e r s .

P ro g ra m  
M a n a g e r/ P r o g r a m  
C o o r d i n a to rs

A u g u s t  1 ,  2 0 1 3
O n - g o i n g  p ro c e s s

C o l la b o r a t e  w i t h  F i r s t  T h in g s  F i r s t  to  
p ro v id e  d a ta  f r o m  t h e  G i la  E n t e rp r i s e  
S y s te m  to  t h e  F i r s t  T h in g s  F i r s t  H u b

P ro g ra m  
M a n a g e r/ P r o g r a m  
C o o r d i n a to rs

I n i t i a l  m e e t in g A p r i l 9 ,
2 0 1 3 a n d w h e n  t h e  F i r s t  
T h in g s  F i r s t  H u b  i s  i n  
p la c e .   

O u tr e a c h  th e  p a r e n t  a c c e s s  s y s te m  
w i t h i n  th e  c o m m u n i t y  a n d  p r o v id e  
fo l l o w - u p  f o r  fa m i l i e s  e n t e r i n g  in t o  
th e d e v e lo p m e n ta l  s c re e n in g  p ro c e s s
th ro u g h  th e  s y s te m .    

P ro g ra m  C o o rd in a t o r s O n - g o i n g



9

Attachment C
Line Item Budget

While you must use this format, you may reproduce it in Word or Excel.  Limit your budget line items to the budget categories 
listed below. 

Budget period:  July 1, 2013 – June 30, 2014

Budget Category Line Item Description Requested Funds Total Cost
PERSONNEL SERVICES Personnel Services Sub Total $100,000.00

Salaries Vacant Program Manager
Vacant-Program Coordinator
Vacant-Program Coordinator
Sarah Chavez-Accounting Clerk

14,000.00
40,000.00
40,000.00
6000.00

EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES Employee Related Expenses Sub Total $36660.00
Fringe Benefits or Other ERE Vacant Program Manager

Vacant-Program Coordinator
Vacant-Program Coordinator
Sarah Chavez-Accounting Clerk

5,460.00
15,600.00
15,600.00

PROFESSIONAL AND OUTSIDE SERVICES Professional & Outside Services Sub 
Total

$1,500.00

Contracted Services ASQ contract maintenance services 1,500.00

TRAVEL Travel Sub Total $11,341.05
In-State Travel 

Out of State Travel

Mileage x .445
     160.20 FTF meetings
     961.20 Staff meeting
3760.25 travel
   160.20 FTF conference
   160.20 additional training
Hotel
FTF confer3 staff x 2 night x $100
    Training 2 staff x1x$100
    Brazelton 3x4x$168.00
Flight/Taxi 

3 staff x $700 
Taxi $100

Perdiem
$7.50x12 staff meet
   $ 25.00x3 staffx3day FTF conf
  $25.00x2staff x2day Training

$59.00x3staff x 4 day Braz

5,202.05

  600.00
  200.00
2,016.00
2,200.00

    90.00
225.00
100.00
708.00

AID TO ORGANIZATIONS OR INDIVIDUALS Aid to Organizations or Individuals Sub Total $
Subgrants or Subcontracts to 
organizations/agencies/entities
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES Other Operating Expenses Sub Total $23,226.25



10

 Telephones/Communications Services
 Internet Access
 General Office Supplies
 Food
 Rent/Occupancy
 Evaluation (non-contracted & non-

personnel expenses)
 Utilities
 Furniture
 Postage
 Software (including IT supplies)
 Dues/Subscriptions
 Advertising
 Printing/Copying
 Equipment Maintenance
 Professional Development/Staff Training
 Conference Workshops/ Training Fees for 

Staff
 Insurance
 Program Materials
 Program Supplies
 Scholarships
 Program Incentives

2 cell phones
Payson annex office
3 staff members
Client classes
Payson office
N/A

Payson office
Kid friendly zones

Including lease rental for copiers

Brazelton

1680.00
840.00
1106.25
500.00
8400.00

2400.00
300.00
200.00
100.00
0
800.00
800.00
0
900.00
200.00

0
2000.00
2000.00
0
1000.00

NON-CAPITAL EQUIPMENT Non-Capital Sub Total $
Equipment $4,999 or less in value 0

Subtotal Direct Program Costs: $

172,727.30

ADMINISTRATIVE/INDIRECT COSTS Total Admin/Indirect $17,272.70
Indirect/Admin Costs $ $17272.70

Total $ $190,000.00

Authorized signature___________________________________ Date

Attachment C (Continued)

Gila County Healthy Steps Program

12 Month Budget Narrative

Personnel

The Program Manager position is currently vacant.  They  oversees all the Maternal and Child Health 
Programs and will be spending 25% of their time on the proposed program for the 12-month grant cycle 
to include attending program related meetings and training.  The manager will provide assistance with 
purchasing, coordination and outreach of the program.  The program manager will also be responsible 
for the quality assurance, staff supervision of the program.  The manager’s salary will total $14,000.00.  



11

The position of Program Coordinator will be hired at a full-time basis. Due to the lack of interest we are 
requesting a higher salary for the coordinators which results in a $5,000.00 increase.  There will be two 
Program Coordinators. They will be responsible for daily oversight of program implementation for the12 
month grant cycle.  They will provide home visitation services, working with each of the families and 
providing developmental screenings and follow-up for participants.  They will be responsible for 
outreach, media campaign and coordination with other agencies. The Program Coordinators salaries will 
be $40,000.00 per coordinator for a total of $80,000.00.

Sarah Chavez is the accounting clerk.  She will provide all the billing and fiscal management for the 
program.  The clerk will be spending 17% of her time on the proposed program for the 12 month grant 
cycle. The accounting clerk’s salary will total $6,000.00.

Grand total of personnel expenses will be $100,000.00.

ERE/Fringe Benefits

The approved fringe benefits for all Gila County employees include: Arizona Retirement, Medicare, 
Social Security, Arizona Unemployment, Worker’s Compensation, and health insurance.  The program 
manager’s portion will total $5460.00.  Each program coordinator’s portion will total $15,600.00. Grand 
total of fringe benefits will be $36,660.00.

Professional and Outside Services

The ASQ online enterprise system has annual cost of $996.35, a technical support cost of $139.95, and
$0.50 per screen over 100 ($200 for 400 screens) to implement in Gila County.  Total amount is 
$1500.00

Travel Expenses

The program manager and two program coordinators will be required to attend a mandatory training 
for Healthy Steps for Brazelton trainingin Boston for four days and the flight will be $700.00 per person 
for a total of $2,100, taxi fare to and from locations will be $100.00, the hotel for each person will be
$168.00 a night for 4 nights for a total of $2016.00and perdiem will be $59.00 per day for four days for 
three staff members totaling $708.00.  The total out-of –state travel costs will be $4924.00. Staff will 
attend Gila Regional Partnership Council meetings every three months (200 miles 2 times) mileage .445 
cents per mile for a total of $160.20.  Staff will be required to attend monthly staff meetings (180 miles 
each trip) mileage .445 cents per mile for a total of $961.20plus the staff who will be traveling will 
receive lunch perdiem $7.50 for the twelve months for a total of $90.00.  Program travel for the 
manager and community health assistant is necessary in the successful implementation of the program 
including outreach, recruiting participants, coordination with local agencies and program 
implementation.  We have estimated mileage to be 4225 miles per coordinator at .445 per mile total 
$3,760.25.  The program manager and two program coordinators will attend the First Things First 
conference two night hotel stay for three staff members at $100.00 for a total of $600.00. Perdiem 



12

is$25.00 per day for three staff for three days total $225.00. Mileage from Globe to Phoenix and Mileage 
from Payson to Phoenix is 180 miles roundtrip for two cars .445 cents per mile for a total of $160.20. An 
additional early childhood or prenatal education training opportunity will be offered to the two program 
coordinatorsone night hotel stay for two staff members at $100.00 for a total of $200.00. Perdiem is 
$25.00 per day for two staff for two days total $100.00. Mileage from Globe to Phoenix and Mileage 
from Payson to Phoenix is 180 miles roundtrip for two cars .445 cents per mile for a total of 
$160.20.Total mileage $5,202.05Total travel expenses $11,341.05.

Other Operating Expenses

Communication supplies will consist of two cell phones prices at $70.00 per month for a total of 
$1,680.00 and internet services for the Payson office at $70.00 per month for a total of $840.00. The 
routine office operating expenses will consist of paper, envelopes, business cards, mailings, 
appointments and referral cards the total price will be $1,106.25.We will provide food for social events 
for clients and families in the amount of $500.00.  In Payson we will rent office space in the amount of 
$700.00 per monthfor a total of $8,400.00plus utilities in the amount of $200.00 per month for at total 
of $2,400.00.  We will continue to provide a kid zone furnishings in the amount of $300.00. Postage will 
be a total of $200.00.  Computer software will be required for a total of $100.00. This is a new program 
and they will need advertising in local newspapers, flyers and referral cards for $800.00.  Each staff 
member will need to pay for coping expenses and a portion of the copy machine lease for each office for 
a total of $800.00.  The Brazelton Institute Training will cost $300.00 for all three staff members to 
attend for a total of $900.00. Conference or training registration fees will be for the two program 
coordinators in the amount of $200.00. Program materials will consist of Healthy Steps training 
materials and ASQ materials in the amount of $2,000.00.Program supplies will include educational toys 
to use for screening children and educational materials such as hand outs and brochures to give parents 
in the amount of $2000.00. Incentives will include age-appropriate books and parent participation 
incentives such as water bottles or exercise bands when discussing exercise, and recipe books when 
discussing nutrition, breast pads or storage bags when discussing breastfeedingetc. in the amount of 
$1,000.00.  This results in a grand total of $23,226.25.

Indirect costs

As a Gila County employee there are indirect costs for personnel paperwork, finance, mail routing, and 
support staff which will be budgeted in the amount of $17,272.70 per year.  This reflects approximately 
10% of direct expenses.



13

Applicants must list either Option A or Option B and provide proper justification for expenses 
included:

� Option A - Administrative Costs:  with proper justification, sub grantees may include an 
allocation for administrative costs for up to 10% of the total direct costs requested of the grant 
request.  Administrative costs may include allocable direct charges for:  costs of financial, 
accounting, auditing, contracting or general legal services; costs of internal evaluation, including 
overall organization’s management improvement costs; and costs of general liability insurance 
that protects the organization(s) responsible for operating a project, other than insurance costs 
solely attributable to the project.  Administrative costs may also include that portion of salaries 
and benefits of the project’s director and other administrative staff not attributable to the time 
spent in support of a specific project.

OR
� Option B - Federally Approved Indirect Costs:  If your organization has a federally approved 

indirect cost rate agreement in place, grantees may include an allocation for indirect costs for up 
to 10% of the direct costs.  Applicants must provide a copy of their federally approved indirect 
cost rate agreement.

Indirect costs are costs of an organization that are not readily assignable to a particular project, but are 
necessary to the operation of the organization and the performance of the project.  The cost of operating 
and maintaining facilities, depreciation, and administrative salaries are examples of the types of costs 
that are usually treated as indirect.

Authorized signature      Date



14

Attachment D

Key Personnel

*In addition, please attach a resume (for current personnel) or a job description (for positions to be 
hired) for the key personnel involved in the project and listed above.  If awarded and there is a change 
in staff or a vacant position filled, a Staff Change Notification form and resume must be uploaded via 
the Communication Log in PGMS.

KEY PERSONNEL SHOULD INCLUDE ANYONE WHO WILL BE PAID FROM THE GRANT

STAFF MEMBER BACKGROUND AND EXPERTISE OF PERSONNEL
Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:

Vacant
Program manager
.25

Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:

Vacant
Program Coordinator
1 FTE

Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:

Vacant
Program Coordinator
1 FTE

Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:

Sarah Chavez
Accounting Clerk
.17

Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:
Name:
Title:
FTE on this project:



15

Attachment E

DISCLOSURE OF OTHER FUNDING SOURCES

Please list all other funding that your organization currently receives from State or Public Agencies, 
Federal Agencies, Non-Profit Organizations, or any other source providing funding for the funded 
program*.  Statute ARS 8-1183 provides for a prohibition on supplanting of state funds by First Things 
First expenditures, meaning that no First Things First monies expended are to be used to take the place 
of any existing state or federal funding for early childhood development and health programs.  

Use a continuation sheet if necessary.  The following form may be reproduced with word processing 
software or another form may be created that contains all the information requested.  

Type of Funding
(Federal, State, local, other) Received From Amount

 If used for 
match on 
this grant

N/A

TOTAL:

*Should include only those funds that will support the program detailed the awarded First Things First grant award



16

Attachment F

First Things First Standard Agency Information Collection Form

A. Agency Information:

Program Name (if applicable)   Gila County Healthy Steps Program

AgencyGila County Division of Health and Emergency Services Contact PersonPaula Horn

Address5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100 PositionDeputy Director

Address Emailphorn@co.gila.az.us

City, State, ZipGlobe, AZ 85501 Phone928-402-8813 Ext 

CountyGila Fax 928-425-0794

Employer Identification Number:86-6000444

Agency Classification:     _____State Agency         ____X_County Government         _____Local Government         _____Schools

_____Tribal          _____Faith Based          _____Non Profit           _____Private Organization          _____Other

Have you previously conducted business with First Things First using this EIN?   __X__Y             ____N
If not, please go to  http://www.gao.az.gov/Vendor/account_setup_home.asp, 
download the State of Arizona Substitute W-9 Form, and submit with your application

Congressional district (federal) in which agency provides most services: District # ___1______

Legislative district (state) in which agency provides most services: District # ____8_____
Go to http://www.azredistricting.org  and click on Final Maps to identify your 
Congressional and legislative district

Approximate federal funding (from a federal source) to be received in current fiscal year?          $5,500,000

Agency’s fiscal year-end date:  6/30/2012

Agency’s accounting method:        _____ Cash             __ X___ Accrual

Does your organization undergo an annual independent audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133?    _X___Y             _____N

Contact information for firm conducting agency audit: 

Audit firm:    Clifton, Larson and Allen LLP

Address:   20 E. Thomas Road , Suite 2300 Phoenix, AZ 85012

Phone:   602-266-2248



17

B. Proposed Program Information / Description:

Amount requested: $190,000.00

Service area of proposed program: Gila County

Target population of proposed program: 200

Lead Strategy - Care Coordination/Medical Home
There are assigned service units for the strategy award from First Things First.  Given the listed service 
unit, provide a contracted number for FY 14. 

Number of children served: 200

Non-Lead Strategy 1 - Developmental and Sensory Screening

Number of children receiving screening: 200
Number of developmental screenings conducted:200
Number of hearing screenings conducted: 
Number of vision screenings conducted: 

Important Items to NOTE:
If you are providing a Service Unit different than the FY 13 contracted number, provide a brief 
description explaining the change.
If you are not providing services for a particular Target Service Unit within the assigned 
Strategy please indicate with “NA”.

IMPORTANT:  Please find the full listing of First Things First Target Service Unit descriptions loaded in 
PGMS under Grantee Resources within a folder called Target Service Units.  

C. Contact Information:

First Things First Partner and Grants Management System (PGMS) requires contact information for persons filling overall grant 
management, financial, programmatic, and evaluation roles.  The same person may be assigned to more than one of the roles.

Main contact information:  This contact person has overall responsibility for ensuring the program is successfully 
implemented.  This person will be able to view all programmatic, financial, and evaluation information in PGMS.  
Correspondence from First Things First will be sent to this person.  

Main contact person:   Paula Horn

Position:   Deputy Director

Address:   5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100

City, State, Zip:   Globe, AZ 85501____________________________________________________________________________

Email:    phorn@co.gila.az.us

Phone:   _928-402-8813_______________________________Ext. _________   Fax:  928-425-0794



18

Program contact information:  This contact person has responsibility for the regular program operations.  They will be able to 
view program and evaluation information in PGMS.  

Program Contact Person:   Program Manager/Vacant ____________________________________________

Position:   ____________________________________________

Address:   ____________________________________________

City, State, Zip:   _____________________________________________________________________________________

Email:   ____________________________________________

Phone:   ________________________________Ext. _________   Fax:  ______________________________________________

Financial contact information:  This contact person has the responsibility for financial accounting and reporting including 
submitting reimbursement request through PGMS.  They will be able to view financial information in PGMS.

Financial contact person:   Sarah Chavez __________________________________________

Position:   Accounting Clerk ____________________________________________

Address:   5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 100 ____________________________________________

City, State, Zip:   _Globe, AZ 85501______________________________________________________________________

Email:   schavez@co.gila.az.us ____________________________________________

Phone:   _928-402-4332____________________________Ext. _________   Fax:  928-425-0794______________________

Evaluation contact information:  This contact person has responsibility for the program’s evaluation and data collection 
activities.  They will be able to view evaluation information in PGMS.

Evaluation contact person:   Program Manager/Vacant ____________________________________________

Position:    ____________________________________________

Address:    ____________________________________________

City, State, Zip:   ____________________________________________________________________________________

Email:    ____________________________________________

Phone:   ________________________________Ext. _________   Fax:  ____________________________________________



19

Your application may have included information about a collaborating partner/agency.  Please provide contact 
information for these collaborators below. 

Collaborator  

Agency:  Gila County Nursing Contact Person:  Lorraine Dalrymple

Address:  5515 S. Apache Ave, suite 100 Position:  Health Program Manager

Address:   Email:  ldalrymp@co.gila.az.us

City, State, Zip:  Globe, AZ 85501 County:  Gila

Phone:  928-402-8811 Ext. ____      Fax:  928-425-0794

Collaborator  

Agency:  Gila County WIC Contact Person:  Jamilyn Anderson

Address:  5515 S. Apache Avenue Position:  Supervisor

Address:   Email:  janderson@co.gila.az.us

City, State, Zip:  Globe, AZ 85501 County:  Gila

Phone:  928-402-4306 Ext. ____      Fax:  928-425-0794

Collaborator  

Agency:  Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center Contact Person:  

Address:  5880 S. Hospital Drive Position:  OB department

Address:   Email:  

City, State, Zip:  Globe, AZ 85501 County:  Gila

Phone:  928-425-3261 Ext. ____      Fax:  

Collaborator  

Agency:  Contact Person:  

Address:  Position:  

Address:   Email:  

City, State, Zip:  County:  

Phone:  Ext. ____      Fax:  



20

Attachment G

First Things First - Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board
Data Security Guidelines and Requirements for Collaborators

BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of the Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things First - FTF) is to 
aid in the creation of a system that offers opportunities and support for families and communities in the 
development of all children, so they can grow up healthy and ready to succeed. Our work is accountable 
and transparent to decision-makers and the citizens of Arizona. Collaboration and direct funding of 
grantees to undertake work on behalf of the children and families of Arizona is fundamental to the
purpose and mission of FTF. Regular submission of data related to funded work is an important part of 
ensuring accountability and maximum positive impact for young children, as well as a material condition 
of receiving FTF grant funding. 

Data Security Guidelines for Data Submission to FTF
First Things First will ensure that resources allocated have maximum impact for the benefit of children 
and families. To ensure this accountability, FTF has established data reporting requirements for all state 
and regional grantees. All funded providers shall regularly submit programmatic and financial reports as 
identified in the FTF reporting requirements. 

FTF data submissions are classified in one of three levels:
 Public data
 Limited distribution data
 Confidential data

The majority of FTF reporting submissions are completed through the FTF Partner Grant Management 
System (PGMS). Subsequent to the award of an FTF grant, the grantee will receive general training on 
login and navigation within the PGMS system. With this login, the grantee will be able to manage their 
contract information. An additional training on strategy-specific data submission requirements will also 
be conducted. During that training, the grantee will be informed on submission of data reporting 
requirements through PGMS.  All data submitted through PGMS is public data or limited distribution 
data.  Because PGMS is located in a secure extranet environment, grantees using PGMS for data 
submission are not required to undertake additional security measures related to their data submission 
above those identified in the general and data submission orientations (password and login security, 
guidelines for upload of narrative and other reports). 

A small group of grantees submit data requirements, with an agreement between the grantee and FTF, 
through an established secure web service or FTP (File Transfer Protocol) site via the internet, rather 
than a PGMS web-based entry form. Such data is likely to contain limited distribution data and shall 
adhere to the following protocols. Grantees that submit data through the secure web service must 
submit data within the established data structures and format; follow all login procedures; submit a 
formal data change request form if needed; and ensure that limited distribution data may not be 
intercepted or viewed at any time by parties other than the grantee and FTF.  Additionally, Grantee 
must ensure that throughout the reporting and submission process the data is secured, and that any 
confidential data is de-identified and/or encrypted.



21

Any grantee submitting data identified as confidential must file a formal data security policy with FTF. 

Data Security Guidelines for Grantee Maintenance of Data 
In order to submit data to FTF in fulfillment of reporting requirements, grantees shall keep all data 
collected for their program(s) within their system (database) or hardcopies. Grantee data is likely to 
contain highly sensitive information on individuals, their education and their health. These guidelines 
and requirements are for the maintenance of those data. 

All grantees must have a data security policy in force that identifies how the organization ensures that 
data is protected in all its forms, during all phases of its life cycle, from inappropriate access, use, 
modification, disclosure, or destruction. 

All grantees subject to HIPAA, FERPA, GITA, tribal law, or other data regulation, are required to submit 
and maintain those approvals for all data.

Data Permission Guidelines for Grantee Data
All grantees must be prepared for FTF review of client-level data (e.g. child-level, teacher-level, or early 
care and education provider-level) during on-site visits. Additionally, FTF data reporting requirements 
may include submission of client-level data (e.g. child-level, teacher-level, or early care and education 
provider-level). The grantee agrees to allow FTF to access such data.  Should the data be subject to 
HIPAA, the grantee agrees to enter into FTF’s HIPAA Business Associate Agreement.

To inform clients of FTF’s reporting requirements, all grantees must include in their client enrollment 
forms the statement:  “To comply with reporting requirements of the funding source, I grant permission 
to [insert grantee organizational name] to release background, service, and impact related information 
to the Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board, also known as First Things First.”  The 
grantee warrants to FTF that prior to entering into the grant agreement for FTF funding, it has 
appropriately enquired and satisfied itself that it has the ability and authority comply with the 
requirements of this section.

Grantees Serving Clients on Tribal Lands
First Things First honors tribal ownership of data and recognizes communication is necessary with 
Arizona Tribes to determine what process/protocol is needed to obtain data.  FTF further recognizes 
Arizona Tribes as owners of their indigenous knowledge, cultural resources and intellectual property.  To 
this end, it is imperative that all appropriate tribal approvals for data collection and submission to FTF 
must be obtained and kept on-file by the grantee and FTF for granting serving clients on tribal lands.

Compliance with Data Security Guidelines
The grantee acknowledges that failure to comply with any requirement of these Data Security 
Guidelines shall be a material breach of the grant agreement.

Revised January 2013





























































































































   

ARF-1824     Consent Agenda Item      4- D             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS, Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Sportsman's Chalet  - 3 Applications for a Temporary Extension of Patio/Premises for
special events in May, June and July 2013.

Background Information
Any establishment that has been issued a liquor license must submit an Application
for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit to the local governing body of the city, town or
county where the establishment is located.  The application can be submitted to
temporarily or permanently extend the premises/patio where serving liquor is
permitted by the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
(Department).  The local governing body usually has established internal
procedures for review and approval of the application.  The Department has final
approval of all recommendations submitted by the local governing body.  

Albert Kheen submitted three (3) applications to temporarily extend the
premises/patio of the Sportsman's Chalet for special events to be held during the
weekends in May, June and July 2013.  The Sportsman's Chalet is located in
Strawberry.

Evaluation
The applications have been reviewed by the Clerk of the Board.  Joe Mendoza, Chief
Building Official of the Community Development Division, also reviewed the
application and he is familiar with the premises.  Both departments have no
objections with regard to these applications.

Conclusion
These applications are ready to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for a
decision.  The Board's recommendation will then be sent to the Department for a final
decision.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors issue an approval recommendation
to the Department.

Suggested Motion
Approval of three (3) Applications for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit submitted by



Approval of three (3) Applications for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit submitted by
Albert Keehn to temporarily extend the premises where liquor is permitted to be
served at the Sportsman's Chalet for special events during the months of May, June
and July 2013.

Attachments
Sportsman's Chalet Temp Ext of Premises for Liquor Service Area
Interoffice Memo Joe Mendoza

















   

ARF-1768     Consent Agenda Item      4- E             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Charlie Brewer,
Rodeo
Committee
Chairman

Submitted By:
Linda Rodriguez, Administrative
Manager, County Manager

Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Rodeo Committee waiver of fees request for use of Fairgrounds exhibit
hall and rodeo arena for the Rodeo Sponsor Dinner & Annual Copper Dust Stampede
Rodeo.

Background Information
The Gila County Rodeo Committee has submitted a request to use the Gila County
Fairgrounds' facilities (with a waiver of fees) for the following events:

May 09, 2013 - Exhibit Hall for the Rodeo Sponsor dinner
May 10 -11, 2013 - Exhibit Hall and Rodeo Arena for the annual Copper Dust
Stampede Rodeo

Evaluation
The Copper Dust Stampede Rodeo provides fun for the family and is beneficial to the
economy of the community. 

Conclusion
The Gila County Rodeo Committee's request to use the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall and
Rodeo arena, with a waiver of fees, should be approved.

There is no conflict with dates; insurance certificates have been provided for events
and security has been arranged with Detective Johnny Holmes of the Gila County
Sheriff's Office.

Recommendation
The recommendation of the staff is to approve the Gila County Rodeo Committee's
request to use the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall and Rodeo arena for their annual events.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Gila County Rodeo Committee's request to use the exhibit hall and
the rodeo arena for the Rodeo Sponsor Dinner on May 9, 2013, and the Copper Dust
Stampede Rodeo, May 10th and 11th, 2013, with a waiver of fees.

Attachments



Rodeo Committee F.G. Application
Rodeo Committee Waiver of Fees Request
Cetificate of Insurance for Sponsor Dinner
Certificate of Insurance for Rodeo on May 10th and 11th, 2013



















   

ARF-1776     Consent Agenda Item      4- F             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Tommie
Martin,
Member, Board
of Supervisors

Submitted By:
Pamela Fisher, Executive Assistant,
Board of Supervisors-District 1

Department: Board of Supervisors-District 1

Information
Request/Subject
2013 Payson Rodeo Committee Chili Cook-Off-Request to Use Payson County Parking
Lot.

Background Information
The Payson Rodeo Committee, a non-profit organization, is requesting the use of the
grounds/parking lot at 714 S. Beeline, Payson for their Annual Chili Cook-Off. This is
the second year for this event at this location and will be held September 14, from
8:00 a.m. through 6:00 p.m.   They will provide liability insurance coverage, trash
bins, port-a-potties and clean up.

Evaluation
This event is beneficial to the community.

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
Vice-Chairman Tommie Martin recommends that the request of the Payson Rodeo
Committee for use of the Payson Court Complex parking lot and grounds for a Chili
Cook-Off be approved.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a request by the Payson Rodeo Committee, a non-profit organization, for
the use the Payson Court Complex grounds for a Chili Cook-Off on September 14,
2013, from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Attachments
Building Use Application Form
Rodeo Committee Waiver







   

ARF-1791     Consent Agenda Item      4- G             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,
Elections
Director

Submitted By: Liz Mata, Administrative Clerk,
Elections Department

Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Board Member Resignation and New
Appointment

Background Information
ARS 48-1012 (C) provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district board other than
from expiration of a term, the remaining board members shall fill the vacancy by
appointment of an interim member.

Evaluation
Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Board member, J.P. "Buddy" Rice
tendered his resignation notice effective February 5, 2013.  The Rim Trail Domestic
Water Improvement District Governing Board appointed Dick Johns to replace Mr.
Rice.

Conclusion
Mr. Dick Johns has agreed to complete Mr. Rice's term of office, which expires
December 31, 2016.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge
the resignation of J.P."Buddy" Rice and the appointment of Dick Johns as a new
Governing Board member for the Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the resignation of Mr. J.P. "Buddy" Rice  from the Rim Trail
Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board and the appointment of Dick
Johns to complete Mr. Rice's term which expires December 31, 2016.

Attachments
Supplemental Information for RTDWID Board



         

48-1012. Elected board of directors; initial members; qualifications; terms; filling 
vacancy; chairperson; qualifications of electors 
A. At the option of the board of supervisors after presentation of a petition requesting 
the establishment of a domestic water improvement district or a domestic wastewater 
improvement district, or upon the submission of a separate petition following the 
establishment of an improvement district as prescribed by section 48-903, and 
subsequent to the approval of the county board of supervisors, the district shall be 
governed by an elected board of directors. The elected board shall consist of the 
number of members, not less than three, specified in the petition for establishment of 
the district. The first directors of such board shall be selected by the board of 
supervisors at the time the district is established. Members of the board of directors 
shall be qualified electors of the district and, after the members first appointed by the 
board of supervisors, shall be elected by the qualified electors of the district. 
B. Immediately after the selection and qualification of the first directors of the board, 
the directors shall meet and divide themselves by lot into two classes as nearly equal 
in number as possible. Directors of the first class shall serve for a term of four years, 
and directors of the second class shall serve for a term of two years. Every director 
shall continue to discharge the duties of office until a successor is appointed and 
qualifies. Thereafter, at each regular election, one director for each expired term shall 
be elected and shall hold office for a term of four years, and until a successor is 
elected and qualifies. The dates of elections and of expiration of terms shall be 
specified in the petition for establishment of the district. 
C. If a vacancy in the district board occurs due to death or disability or any other 
cause other than resignation, the board of directors of the district shall appoint a 
qualified elector of the district to fill the office for the remaining portion of that term. 
If there is a vacancy in the district board due to resignation, the district board shall 
accept the resignation and appoint a qualified elector to fill the remaining portion of 
that term of office. If the district board lacks a quorum for any reason for more than 
thirty days, the county board of supervisors may revoke the authority of the 
appointed or elected board of directors pursuant to section 48-1016. 
D. The board of directors shall annually elect a chairperson from among its members. 
E. If only one person files or no person files a nominating petition for election to fill a 
position on the board of directors of the district, the county board of supervisors, by 
resolution, may cancel the election for that office and appoint the person who filed the 
nominating petition to fill that position. If no person files a nominating petition for an 
election to fill a district board office, the county board of supervisors, by resolution, 
may cancel the election for those offices and those offices are deemed vacant and 
shall be filled as otherwise provided by law. A person who is appointed pursuant to 
this section is fully vested with the powers and duties of the office as if elected to that 
office. 
F. For the purposes of either a domestic water improvement district or a domestic 
wastewater improvement district that is organized pursuant to this article and that 
serves at the time of organization a population of ten thousand persons or less 
according to the most recent United States decennial census, in addition to any other 
qualified elector of the district, any natural person who is a qualified elector of this 
state and who is a real property owner within the district is eligible to vote in a district 
election without regard to that person's residency and shall be deemed a qualified 
elector of the district for purposes of service on the board of directors.  

Page 1 of 1Format Document

8/17/2011http://www.azleg.gov/FormatDocument.asp?format=print&inDoc=/ars/48/01012.htm&Titl...











   

ARF-1805     Consent Agenda Item      4- H             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting
Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk,
BOS, Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System Local Board Membership Changes

Background Information
Per A.R.S. §38-841, the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (System) was
created effective July 1, 1968, as an amendment to and continuation of three prior
systems.  A.R.S. §38-847(A) states, "The administration of the
system and responsibility for making the provisions of the system effective for each
employer are vested in a local board."  On March 1, 1985, a Local Board of the Public
Safety Personnel Retirement System was created in Gila County for those peace
officers of the Sheriff's Office.  Peace Officers can be deputies or detectives.  

The Local Board is comprised of 5 members:  1 - Chairman of the Board of
Supervisors (BOS) or another member as approved by the BOS Chairman and with
the overall approval of the BOS members; 2-members who are elected by secret ballot
by members employed by the County; and 2-citizens, one of whom shall be the head
of the merit system, which in Gila County is the Personnel Commission, who is
appointed by the BOS Chairman and with the overall approval of the BOS members.

Evaluation
Jim Eskew's, who was represented as a "citizen" on the Public Safety Personnel
Retirement System (PSPRS) Local Board, term of office expired December 31, 2012. 
Michael Fane's, who was represented as "Member" on the Local Board and who was
elected by secret ballot by members of this retirement plan, term of office expired
December 31, 2012.  

An election held by secret ballot of those members of this retirement plan and who are
Gila County employees was held to elect a member to serve on the PSPRS Local Board
of Directors.  Those election results were certified during a meeting of the PSPRS Local
Board on February 15, 2013; it was announced that Karl Schubert won the election
and he was sworn-in during that meeting.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors needs to acknowledge these PSPRS Local Board membership
changes.

Recommendation



It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge the membership
changes as outlined in the attached membership list.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the membership changes for the Local Board of the Public Safety
Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS), as follows: 1) Jim Eskew's and Michael Fane's
expiration of their terms of office effective December 31, 2012; and 2) the election of
Karl Schupert, represented as a member on the PSPRS Local Board, effective February
15, 2013, to February 14, 2017.

Attachments
PSPRS Local Board Membership List
PSPRS 2-15-13 Minutes
Oath of Office for Karl Schupert



PUBLIC SAFETY PERSONNEL RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PSPRS) LOCAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
(Proposed to BOS on 5/7/13 and if approved the list will be as follows) 

 
NAME OF MEMBER 

(Also include supervisorial 
district if a member is 

representing a certain one.) 

TYPE OF 
APPOINTMENT 

 
Mark with A, B, C, 
D or E – see below 

NEW APPOINTMENT OR REAPPOINTMENT 
(Include BOS approval date next to letter) 

New Appointment:  Choose “A” or “B” 
A -for existing vacancy or 
B -to fill a vacancy created by (provide name) 
or 
Reappointment:  Mark with a “C” and include 
number of years served prior to most recent 
appointment 

DATES OF TERM 
(Put the month, day and 
year both beginning & 

ending dates) 

LENGTH OF TERM FOR 
CURRENT 

APPOINTMENT 
(# of years) 

John Marcanti-represented as 
the BOS CHAIRMAN with the 
overall approval of the BOS 

B A (01/22/13) - 01/22/13-12/31/13 4 year term,  but this 
appointment is 
reviewed each year by 
the BOS 

Jim Eskew-CITIZEN appointed 
by BOS 

B C (05/12/09) 5 years, 6 months 01/01/09-12/31/12 
TERM EXPIRED 

4 years 

Ophelia James-CITIZEN 
appointed by BOS-must be 
the head of the Personnel 
Commission 

B A (02/21/12) - 01/01/12-12/31/15 4 years 

Michael Johnson-MEMBER 
elected by Plan members 

C A (02/21/12) - 01/01/12-12/13/15 4 years 

Michael Fane-MEMBER 
elected by Plan members 

C A (02/21/12) - 01/01/09-12/31/12 
TERM EXPIRED 

4 years 

Karl Schubert-MEMBER 
elected by Plan members 

C A (05/07/13) - 02/15/13-02/14/17 4 years 

 
Appointment Designation Definitions: 
A) Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
B) Supervisor Appointment: Member unrestricted by district. 
C) Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the 
Board of Supervisors.  (Per A.R.S. §38-847(A)(1), 3 members appointed by BOS and 2 members appointed by secret ballot by Local Board members.) 
D) County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E) Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 









   

ARF-1806     Consent Agenda Item      4- I             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel
Jr.

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS, Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Appointment of Members to Arizona Counties Insurance Pool's Board of Trustees

Background Information
Arizona Counties Insurance Pool (ACIP) provides liablity insurance for Gila County
and 10 other Arizona counties.  Each member county is represented with one Trustee
and one Alternate Trustee on ACIP's Board of Trustees.  On February 2, 2010,
the Board of Supervisors appointed John F. Nelson, Deputy County Manager/Clerk,
as a Trustee to serve on ACIP's Board of Trustees and Steve Stratton, Public Works
Division Director, as an Alternate Trustee.  Mr. Nelson retired from Gila County
effective January 29, 2013, so a vacancy exists on this Board of Trustees.

Evaluation
The Board of Supervisors should review the members who represent Gila County on
ACIP's Board of Trustees.

Conclusion
Since these appointments by the Board of Supervisors have not been reviewed since
2010, and given the fact that John Nelson recently retired from Gila County, it is
appropriate to consider appointments to ACIP's Board of Trustees at this time.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors appoint Don E. McDaniel, Jr.,
County Manager, to serve as a Trustee on ACIP's Board of Trustees and Linda
Eastlick, Human Resources Director, as an Alternate Trustee.

Suggested Motion
Approval to appoint Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager, to serve as a Trustee
representing Gila County on Arizona Counties Insurance Pool's Board of
Trustees and Linda Eastlick, Human Resources Director, as an Alternate Trustee.

Attachments
Proposed Appointments to ACIP's Board of Trustees



Arizona Counties Insurance Pool (ACIP) 
(Proposed to BOS on 5/7/13) 

 
 

 
 

NAME OF MEMBER TYPE OF 
APPOINTMENT 

 
Mark with A, B, C, 
D or E – see below 

NEW APPOINTMENT OR REAPPOINTMENT 
(Include BOS approval date next to letter) 

New Appointment:  Choose “A” or “B” 
A -for existing vacancy or 
B -to fill a vacancy created by (provide name) 
or 
Reappointment:  Mark with a “C” and include 
number of years served prior to most recent 
appointment 

DATES OF TERM 
(Put the month, day and 
year both beginning & 

ending dates) 

LENGTH OF TERM  
(# of years) 

John F. Nelson, Trustee B B (02/02/10) - 02/02/10-until 
appointment of a duly-
qualified successor 

No set length of term 

Steve Stratton, Alternate 
Trustee 

B B (02/02/10) - 02/02/10 until 
appointment of a duly 
qualified successor 

No set length of term 

Don E. McDaniel, Jr., Trustee B B (05/07/13) - 05/07/13 until 
appointment of a duly 
qualified successor 

To be reviewed January 
2016 

Linda Eastlick, Alternate 
Trustee 

B -  (05/07/13) - 05/07/13 until 
appointment of a duly 
qualified successor 

To be reviewed January 
2016 

 
Appointment Designation Definitions: 
A) Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appoint. 
B) Supervisor Appointment: Member unrestricted by district. 
C) Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the 
Board of Supervisors.   
D) County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E) Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 



   

ARF-1785     Consent Agenda Item      4- J             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for March
2013

Submitted For: Mary Navarro Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations
Mgr, Superior Court

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for March 2013.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Globe Regional Justice Court report for 03/13









   

ARF-1790     Consent Agenda Item      4- K             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for March 2013

Submitted For: Sadie Dalton Submitted By: Sadie Dalton, Recorder, Recorder's Office

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for March 2013.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2013 monthly activity report summited by the
Recorder's Office.

Attachments
Recorder's March 2013 Monthly Report



















   

ARF-1789     Consent Agenda Item      4- L             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2013

Submitted For: Colt White Submitted By: Michelle Keegan, Administrative Clerk
Senior, Constable - Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2013

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2013

















































   

ARF-1794     Consent Agenda Item      4- M             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for March 2013

Submitted For: Anita
Escobedo

Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the
Superior Court, Clerk of the Superior
Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for March 2013

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2013 monthly activity report submitted by the Clerk of
the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk's Report March 2013



















   

ARF-1820     Consent Agenda Item      4- N             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Reporting
Period:

April 16, 2013

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, BOS, Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors

Information
Subject
April 16, 2013, BOS Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the April 16, 2013, BOS meeting minutes.

Attachments
04-16-13 BOS Meeting Minutes



 

Page 1 of 9 

 

GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
 

Date:  April 16, 2013 
 

MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman Clerk 
 

TOMMIE C. MARTIN By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 

JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                    Gila County Courthouse 
Member Globe, Arizona                                

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 

(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk; and Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy 

Attorney Principal 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 

 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Bryan Chambers led the 

Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend Charles Proudfoot from the Community 
Presbyterian Church in Payson delivered the invocation. 

 
Vice-Chairman Martin announced that Sergeant Hazelo was not yet present at 
the meeting, so she requested that item 3A be addressed at this time, to which 

the Chairman agreed.   
 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the allocation of $45,000 of 

Gila County's Secure Rural Schools and Communities Funds (SRSC - 
'Forest Fees') for FY2012-13 to Roads, and to distribute SRSC funds in the 
amount of $1,304,124 to Gila County School Districts in accordance with 

the attached distribution schedule.   
 

Linda O’Dell, Gila County School Superintendent, advised that for the past four 
years the Board of Supervisors has allocated $50,000 of this funding to be 
used for the roads by the County Roads Department and the remainder has 

been allocated to County schools.  The allocation is based on a formula that 
was determined several years ago by the school district superintendents, 
County management and the Gila County School Superintendent’s Office.  The 

formula has a base, which is a percent of the total amount available, and 
student enrollment and the actual percentage of acreage in the County are also 



 

Page 2 of 9 

 

factors.  Dr. O’Dell requested permission to allocate 90% of the full amount 
that is on deposit in the County Treasurer’s Office.  That percentage is based 

on a request from County Manager Don McDaniel that 10% be withheld 
against the possibility that some amount of money may need to be returned to 

the federal government based on sequestration.  Dr. O’Dell supports Mr. 
McDaniel’s request.  
 

Vice-Chairman Martin previously was questioned as to the reason it is being 
requested that 10% be withheld rather than 5.1% of these funds; however, that 
question was answered by Dr. O’Dell and Mr. McDaniel.  Upon Board approval, 

Vice-Chairman Martin wants the 90% allocation to be distributed to the 
schools as soon as possible.  Once the federal government decides on the 

sequestration issue and if those funds aren’t required to be returned to the 
federal government, she wants the remaining 10% of funding to be immediately 
distributed to the schools because the funds represent “whole teachers” to the 

school districts. Vice-Chairman Martin voiced her opposition to the federal 
government using any of these funds, to which Dr. O’Dell agreed. 

 
Supervisor Marcanti asked for further clarification on the motion for the 
distribution of funds and he inquired if the Board needs to state in the motion 

that the schools will receive another 10% of the funding if the federal 
government does not request them.  Chairman Pastor asked Dr. O’Dell if the 
Board should identify this as one of possibly two payments.  Dr. O’Dell replied 

that if the Board chooses to addresses this request as being one of possibly two 
payments, she is in support of that wording for the motion.   

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved the allocation of $45,000 of Gila County's Secure 

Rural Schools and Communities Funds (SRSC - 'Forest Fees') for FY2012-13 to 
Roads, and to distribute SRSC funds in the amount of $1,304,124 to Gila 
County School Districts in accordance with the distribution schedule that is 

attached to this agenda item in the AgendaQuick™ agenda system.  County 
Manager Don McDaniel suggested that the motion include a statement that 

there would be a second distribution if and when the determination is made by 
the federal government. The Board unanimously approved this addition to the 
motion. 

 
Dr. O’Dell advised that the funds would most likely be distributed to the school 

districts later today. 
 
Item 2 - PRESENTATIONS:  

 
Presentation of the Officer of the Quarter by Bradley D. Beauchamp, Gila 
County Attorney, to Sergeant Jason Hazelo of the Payson Police 

Department.   
 



 

Page 3 of 9 

 

 
The Board returned to item 2A as Sergeant Hazelo arrived at the meeting in 

Payson.  Bradley Beauchamp reviewed Sergeant Hazelo’s professional 
experience with the Payson Police Department.  He stated, “Sergeant Hazelo’s 

testimony at trial is not only professional, but he has incredible jury appeal.”  
Mr. Beauchamp presented the award to Sergeant Hazelo and he stated that the 
chosen officer’s agency also receives an award.  Sergeant Hazelo thanked Mr. 

Beauchamp for the award and stated that he appreciated all of the 
opportunities afforded him by the County Attorney’s Office and the Payson 
Police Department, and he thanked his family.  Mr. Beauchamp presented an 

award to Lieutenant Eldridge of the Payson Police Department. 
 

Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: (continued) 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to ratify Gila County's determination 

to participate in the National IPA cooperative purchasing agreement, 
ratify the acceptance of its terms, and approve a Customer Purchase 

Agreement between Gila County and Empire CAT for the purchase of one 
new 2013 12M2 Caterpillar motor grader (serial number R9P00120) in the 
amount of $298,122 with a trade-in allowance of $111,000 that has been 

applied to the purchase price.  
 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, explained that Gila County is 

listed as a member of the National IPA, a cooperative purchasing group.  It is 
unclear when or how Gila County entered into this cooperative purchasing 

agreement, but as a member of the National IPA, Gila County can benefit 
through an existing agreement that Caterpillar has between the City of Tucson 
and the National IPA to buy a new 2013 12M2 Caterpillar motor grader. The 

National IPA discount is 35.5% off the list price of $445,534, which results in a 
significant cost savings of $158,306 on the new 2013 all-wheel drive motor 
grader.  

 
The Customer Purchase Agreement with Empire CAT shows the subtotal price 

for the new motor grader to be $298,122, which includes $3,000 for a 5 
year/5000 hour governmental (total machine) warranty and $7,894 for freight 
from the factory to Arizona. With a trade-in of two older motor graders in the 

amount of $111,000 and a down payment of $120,000 plus sales tax totaling 
$16,560.30, a balance of $83,682.30 will be due by August 1, 2013. 

 
In the Transportation Excise Tax budget, there is $160,000 available in Capital 
Outlay. The plan is to use $120,000 of those funds during this fiscal year 

as the down payment, and pay the remaining balance of $83,682.30 by August 
1, 2013.  Empire will carry the $83,682.30 balance without charging any 
interest.  Since it is such a short term agreement, financing is not available.  

 
The County will automatically be enrolled in the preventative maintenance 



 

Page 4 of 9 

 

program that provides filters and computer connectivity with Caterpillar for 
diagnostic "real time" information on the machine. A GPS is also installed as 

standard practice which provides location and operating status. The wheels, 
moldboard and rippers are the same size that the County purchases for its 

other motor graders. Upgrading one piece of equipment will save the County 
the cost of repairing old, unreliable equipment.  The County will reduce its total 
number of motor graders from 15 to 14.  Before the motion was made, Mr. 

Stratton pointed out that the agenda item incorrectly listed the trade-in 
amount as $110,000 when the correct amount is $111,000.  (Note:  The agenda 
has since been corrected.) 

 
Upon motion Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 

Board unanimously ratified its approval for Gila County to participate in the 
National IPA cooperative purchasing agreement, ratified the acceptance of the 
terms outlined in the agreement, and approved a Customer Purchase 

Agreement between Gila County and Empire CAT for the purchase of one 
new 2013 12M2 Caterpillar motor grader (serial number R9P00120) in the 

amount of $298,122 with a trade-in allowance of $111,000 that has been 
applied to the purchase price.  
 

C.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the County Manager's 
signature on an Agreement (Proposal No. GilaCounty-001) between 
ReSEED, LLC and Gila County allowing ReSEED, LLC to work with the 

Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) to place the road project 
known as "Silver King" in ADOT's 2014-2018 Five-Year Transportation 

Facilities Construction Program (TFCP) - $10,000 to be paid upon 
execution of the Agreement and $10,000 to be paid if the Silver King 
project is fully funded and approved in year 1 or 2 (2014 or 2015) of 

ADOT's Five-Year TFCP, contingent upon approval by Bryan Chambers, 
Deputy Attorney Principal. 
 

Mr. Stratton provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding ADOT’s Five-Year 
Transportation Facilities Construction Program (TFCP.)  He reviewed 3 

scenarios being considered by ADOT in its Five-Year TFCP.  He recommended 
supporting Scenario B, which promotes construction of the Silver King and 
Lion Springs projects.  The Silver King project is located in Pinal County and 

the project would be for the portion of roadway from the Boyce Thompson 
Arboretum to the turnoff to Highway 177 toward Kearny.  Since the completion 

of the Gonzales Pass project, the accident rate has been significantly reduced 
and studies show that the completion of the Silver King project would provide 
another significant reduction in the projected accident rate.  The Lion Springs 

project is located in Gila County and it would complete the Highway 260 
divided highway from Heber to Show Low.  The design of the Silver King project 
is 60% complete and it will be completed in February 2014 at which time the 

project will be ready to go out for bids.  The Silver King project is estimated to 
cost $45M and the Lion Springs project is estimated to cost $40M.   



 

Page 5 of 9 

 

 
Mr. Stratton advised that Felipe Zubia, owner of ReSEED, LLC, is a former 

ADOT Board member.  Mr. Stratton believes that it is important to enter into 
this agreement with ReSEED to provide Gila County with assistance to lobby 

for these projects.  Without the help of Mr. Zubia and his staff, Mr. Stratton 
believes that there is little hope of getting these projects funded.  The intent is 
to get the Silver King project fully funded in year 1 or 2 (2014 or 2015) of the 

ADOT 2014-2018 Five-Year TFCP, and because the Iron Springs project has 
not yet been designed, the intent would be to get it funded for year 4 or 5 of the 
ADOT 2014-2018 Five-Year TFCP.  ADOT has applied to the Federal Highway 

Administration for a $40M grant to design and construct the Lion Springs 
project.  This grant application requires a 6% cash match.  Mr. Stratton stated 

that the County should look into ways to fund the 6% match requirement for 
the Lion Springs project, which would be approximately $2.4M.  He is waiting 
for an opinion from the Arizona Attorney General’s Office and he has yet to 

contact the County Attorney’s Office to determine if the County could have a 
joint easement with the Forest Service for the portion of roadway that is the 

Lions Springs project and, if so, determine if it’s legal to use the County’s half 
cent excise tax for the match requirement.  Vice-Chairman Martin was 
adamant that both projects need to be included in ADOT’s Five-Year TFCP and 

that both are given equal importance.  Chairman Pastor inquired whether Pinal 
County was also supporting Scenario B to which Mr. Stratton replied that 
county is in support of Scenario B; however, he hasn’t yet received a resolution 

adopted by the Board of Supervisors in support of it.   
 

Mr. Stratton advised that the agreement with ReSEED wasn’t attached to the 
agenda item at the time the agenda was published as there were some 
corrections being made, so that is the reason the language in the suggested 

motion states that approval of the agreement is contingent upon the approval 
of Bryan Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal.  The agreement has been 
attached to this item and it is ready to be approved by the Board, if the Board 

so chooses to approve it.  Mr. Chambers stated that he approves the agreement 
as to form.   

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously authorized the County Manager's signature on an 

Agreement (Proposal No. GilaCounty-001) between ReSEED, LLC and Gila 
County allowing ReSEED, LLC to work with the Arizona Department of 

Transportation (ADOT) to place the road project known as "Silver King" in 
ADOT's 2014-2018 Five-Year Transportation Facilities Construction Program 
(TFCP) - $10,000 to be paid upon execution of the Agreement and $10,000 to 

be paid if the Silver King project is fully funded and approved in year 1 or 2 
(2014 or 2015) of ADOT's Five-Year TFCP. 
 

Mr. Stratton talked briefly about the ADOT’s public comment process for the 
Five-Year TFCP.  He recommended sending an email to all County employees 



 

Page 6 of 9 

 

who have the use of a computer and to pass the information to those that do 
not have a computer urging everyone to submit comments of being in favor of 

Scenario B, which includes the Silver King and Lion Springs projects being 
placed in ADOT’s 2014-2018 Five-Year TFCP, to which the Board agreed.  At 

the end of a discussion on possible funding for the Lion Springs project, it was 
agreed that Mr. Stratton would place an agenda item on the Board’s May 7th 
meeting to request authorization from the Board for Public Works Division staff 

to work on an agreement with ADOT on jointly providing the match funding 
requirement in the estimated amount of $2.4M for the grant application that 
ADOT has submitted to the Federal Highway Administration. 

 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the electronic submission 

of the Juvenile Crime Reduction Fund (JCRF) application by the Gila 
County Probation Department to the Arizona Supreme Court in the 
amount of $1,400 to be used during for fiscal year 2013, if awarded. 

 
Sylvia Hernandez, Probation Officer Manager, explained that the Gila County 

Probation Department is embarking on this pilot project in conjunction with 
the Clerk of the Superior Court and Superior Court Administration to increase 
offender accountability.  This will be accomplished by increasing the collection 

of Court ordered obligations utilizing the iPhone and Square to assist the 
officers in the field to collect remotely.  The grant will enable the Probation 
Department to purchase four “iPhones” and “Squares” with no cost to the 

County.  The grant has also allowed for the Department to build in a 2.75% 
charge per swipe to the grant.  It is estimated the County will improve 

collections by 20% this year.  
 
Chairman Pastor asked if this is a pilot program for the entire State of Arizona.  

Ms. Hernandez confirmed that it is.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved the 
electronic submission of the Juvenile Crime Reduction Fund (JCRF) application 

by the Gila County Probation Department to the Arizona Supreme Court in the 
amount of $1,400 to be used during for fiscal year 2013, if awarded. 

 
Item 4 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 

upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  

 
A.  Approval of the reappointment of Margret Celix to serve on the Gila 
County Community Action Program Advisory Board for another four (4) 

years, retroactive from January 1, 2013, to December 31, 2016.  
 
B.  Acknowledgment of John Marcanti's resignation from the Gila County 

Building Safety Advisory and Appeals Board effective December 31, 2012, 



 

Page 7 of 9 

 

and approval to appoint Bruce Binkley to fulfill Mr. Marcanti's unexpired 
term of office through December 31, 2014. 

 
C.  Ratification of the Board of Supervisors' approval for the Gila County 

Attorney's Office electronic submission of a FY2014 Grant Application to 
the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang and Violent Crime 
Control Program in the amount of $79,722 to continue grant funding and 

approve up to a 25 percent match requirement.  
 
D.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 2 to 

Contract No. 031711-1 between Gila County and Wright Asphalt Products 
Company for SBS polymer chip seal oil to extend the contract for 12 

months, from January 7, 2013, to January 6, 2014.  
 
E.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 2 to 

Contract No. 061311-1 between Gila County and Wright Asphalt Products 
Company for MC-800TR chip seal oil to extend the contract for 12 

months, from April 6, 2013, to April 5, 2014.  
 
F.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 

the Pinal Mountain Elk's Lodge of Globe, Arizona, to serve liquor at a 
wedding reception on April 27, 2013.  
 

G.  Approval of an Agreement between Gila County and the Arizona 
Division of Forestry whereby Gila County will receive $15,000 of a total 

appropriation of $75,000 for three environmental projects affecting 
economic development in the five counties of Apache, Gila, Graham, 
Greenlee and Navajo which were identified by the Environmental 

Economic Communities Organization on behalf of the counties and 
submitted to the State Forester who has approved them.  
 

H.  Acknowledgment of the January 2013 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable’s Office.  

 
I.  Acknowledgment of the February 2013 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  

 
J.  Approval of the March 26, 2013, and April 2, 2013, BOS meeting 

minutes.  
 
K.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 

approved by the County Manager for the weeks of March 11, 2013, to 
March 15, 2013; and March 18, 2013, to March 22, 2013.  
 

L.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of April 
9. 2013, and April 16, 2013.  



 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 
     April 9, 2013 

$160,395.27 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 253246 
through 253327. 

     April 16, 2013 

$2,139,960.86 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 253328 
through 253503.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 

in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   

Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 4A through 4L as 
presented. 
 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow 
individuals to address issue(s) within the Board's jurisdiction. Board 

members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the 
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), 
action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to responding 

to criticism made by those who have addressed the Board of Supervisors, 
may ask staff to review the matter or may ask that a matter be put on a 

future agenda for further discussion and decision at a future date.  
 
There were no requests to speak from the public in Globe or Payson. 

 
Item 7 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 

Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 

Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 



 

Page 9 of 9 

 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:14 a.m. 

 
APPROVED: 

 
 
_____________________________________ 

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 

_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
 

 



   

ARF-1773     Consent Agenda Item      4- O             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Human Resources reports for the weeks of April 2, 2013, April 9,
2013, April 16, 2013, April 23, 2013 and April 30, 2013.

Submitted For: Linda V.
Eastlick

Submitted By: Juley Bocardo-Homan, Human
Resources Assistant, Human Resources

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of April 2, 2013, April 9, 2013, April 16,
2013, April 23, 2013 and April 30, 2013.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of April 2, 2013, April
9, 2013, April 16, 2013, April 23, 2013 and April 30, 2013.

Attachments
April Human Resources Summary Report
04/02/13 Human Resources Report
04/09/13 Human Resources Report
04/16/13 Human Resources Report
04/23/13 Human Resources Report
04/30/13 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐13 Feb‐13 Mar‐13 Apr‐13 May‐13 Jun‐13 Jul‐13 Aug‐13 Sep‐13 Oct‐13 Nov‐13 Dec‐13

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE 54 17 8 12 17

HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE 38 6 10 7 15
 

TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE 12 1 0 2 9

VOLUNTEERS TO COUNTY SERVICE 0 0 0 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 26 3 9 7 7

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 46 7 18 10 11

POSITION REVIEW  34 23 1 4 6

REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST 46 10 11 8 17

  Total Transactions 256 67 57 50 82 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
APRIL 2, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Judy Smrdel – Recorder’s Office – Office Supervisor – 03/19/13 – General Fund – DOH 05/24/00 – 
Resignation 

2. Raymond Geiser – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney Sr. – 04/05/13 – General Fund 
– DOH 09/20/06 – Resignation 

3. Sandra Yoder – Probation – Administrative Clerk Sr. – 03/26/13 – Juvenile Intensive Probation 
Supervision Fund – DOH 11/17/08 – Resignation 

4. Jeanette Shapiro – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher (Inmate Counselor) – 02/28/13 – General Fund – 
DOH 07/05/13 – Resignation 

5. Nyokia Goklish – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 04/05/13 – General Fund – DOH 01/30/12 – 
Resignation 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

6. Tracy Hamilton – Health Services – Administrative Clerk Sr. – 04/04/13 – Health Service Fund – 
Replacing Valerie Hereford 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

7. Paul Larkin – Payson Regional Justice Court – Judge Pro-Tem – 04/01/13 – General Fund 
8. Ronnie McDaniel – Payson Regional Justice Court – Judge Pro-Tem – 04/01/13 – General Fund 
9. Stephanie Chaidez – Finance – Temporary Accounting Clerk – 03/25/13 – General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

10. Linda Eastlick – From Elections – To Human Resources – From Elections Director – To Human 
Resources/Risk Management Director – 03/21/13 – General Fund 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

11. Stephen Shaw – County Attorney’s Office – Chief Detective – 04/22/13 – General Fund 
12. Valerie Hereford – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Sr. – 04/22/13 – General Fund 
13. Tracy Stone – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – 02/09/13 – Attorney’s Justice Enhancement 

Fund 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
APRIL 9, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Erin E. Maupin – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy Attorney Sr. – 04/08/13 – Drug Prosecution Grant 
Fund – DOH 12/22/11 – Resignation 

2. Roland Valencia – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 03/17/13 – General Fund – DOH 11/01/00 – 
Abandonment of Position 

3. Nancy Holland – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 03/25/13 – GEST Fund – DOH 
12/22/11 – Resignation 

4. Karen Rork – Health Services – Administrative Clerk – 02/15/13 – General Fund – DOH 11/05/12 – 
Resignation 

5. Sine Scott – Community Development – Engineering Technician – 05/17/13 – General Fund – DOH 
02/23/04 – Retirement 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

6. Marion F. Faubush – Public Works – Building and Grounds Maintenance Worker – 04/11/13 – General 
Fund – Replacing Howard Gallion 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

7. Manuel Casillas – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 04/15/13 – General Fund/Constituent 
Services District II Fund 

8. Curtis Johnson – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 04/15/13 – General Fund/Constituent 
Services District II Fund 

9. Ernest Salcido – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 04/15/13 – General Fund/Constituent 
Services District II Fund 

10. David Oropeza – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 04/15/13 – General Fund/Constituent 
Services District II Fund 

11. Don Calender – Payson Regional Justice Court – Judge Pro-Tem – 01/01/13 – General Fund 
 
PROMOTION: 
 

12. Jennifer Alvarez – Finance – From Buyer – To Procurement Administrator – 04/01/13 – General Fund 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

13. Samantha Jerome – Health Services – Staff Nutritionist – 01/16/13 – WIC Fund 
14. Jessica Madrid – Probation – Public Health Nurse – 03/29/13 – General Fund 
15. Marc Stanley – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy Attorney Principal – 04/22/13 – General Fund 
16. Rita E. Lewis – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate – 12/29/12 – General 

Fund 
 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

17. Marian Sheppard – Board of Supervisors – Clerk of the Board – 04/02/13 – General Fund – Change in 
title from Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board to Clerk of the Board 

 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
April 9, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

18. Superior Court General – Calendar Administrator – Position Vacated by Susan Williams 
19. Finance – Buyer – Position Vacated by Jennifer Alvarez 
20. Information Technology – Systems & Network Communication Analyst – Position Vacated by Tyler 

Solberg 
21. Finance – Finance Director – Position Vacated by Joe Heatherly 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
APRIL 16, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Tyler Solberg – Information Technology – Systems & Network Communications Analyst – 04/26/13 – 
General Fund – DOH 06/26/06 – Resignation 

2. Angelita Mendoza – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – 04/12/13 – General Fund – DOH 
09/21/09 – Resignation 

3. Angela L. Garcia – Sheriff’s Office – Public Health Nurse – 04/01/13 – General Fund – DOH 04/01/13 
– Declined offer of employment 

4. Marion Barefoot – Finance – Accountant Sr. – 04/08/13 – General Fund – DOH 12/27/12 – 
Unsuccessful completion of probationary period 

5. David Luhm – Sheriff’s Office – I.T. Administrative Support Technician - 04/19/13 - General Fund – 
DOH 03/12/12 - Resignation 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

6. Jaime Romero – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer II – 04/18/13 – Adult Intensive Probation 
Supervision Fund – Replacing Mark Joerns 

7. Sonia Yanez – Health Services – Healthy Steps Coordinator – 04/24/13 – Healthy Steps Fund – Grant 
funded position 

8. Janet Ostrom – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 04/18/13 – GEST Fund – 
Replacing Valerie Kaufman 

9. David Luhm – Information Technology – I.T. Administrator & Support Sr. – 04/09/13 – General Fund – 
Replacing Tyler Solberg 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

10. Jerry Farr – Public Works – From Construction Project Manager – To Temporary Construction Program 
Manager – 02/14/13 – Public Works Fund 

11. David Rogers – Elections – From Elections Specialist – To Interim Elections Director – 04/04/13 – 
General Fund 

 
OTHER CHANGES: 
 

12. Clint Lyman – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 03/26/13 – General Fund – Correction of 
employee start date from 03/21/13 as listed on a previously submitted Payroll Authorization to 03/26/13 

13. Mark Joerns – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer II – 04/18/13 – General Fund – Change in Fund 
Code and Position Control Number 

14. Robin Miller – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – 04/15/13 – General Fund – Change in 
Fund Code and Position Control Number 

15. Nathaneal Cutter – Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – 11/26/12 – Waste Tire Fund – Change in 
Fund Code 

16. Dana Lindsey – County Attorney’s Office – Detective – 04/08/13 – General Fund – Change in Fund 
Code 

 
 
 
 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
April 16, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

17. Community Services – Temporary Community Services Worker – Position Vacated by Nancy Holland 
18. Finance – Accountant Sr. – Position Vacated by Marion Barefoot 
19. Sheriff’s Office – Public Health Nurse – Position Vacated by Anjanette Bolinger 
20. Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – Position vacated by Angelita Mendoza 
21. Community Development – Floodplain Coordinator – Position Vacated by Carlos Ozuna 
22. Information Technology – Information Technology Director – Position Vacated by Darryl Griffin 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
APRIL 23, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Hazel Dillon – Assessor’s Office – Chief Deputy Assessor – 05/22/13 – General Fund – DOH 04/02/86 
– Retirement 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

2. Deborah A. Hunsaker – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 05/06/13 – General Fund – Replacing 
Jessica Cruz 

3. Sean M. Bowyer – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/29/13 – General Fund – Replacing 
Christian Williams 

4. Joseph R. Bramlet – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/29/13 – General Fund – Replacing 
Michael Cruz 

5. Melinda A. Elmore – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher Relief – 04/29/13 – General Fund – Replacing 
Kayla Porter 

6. Carolyn Bartling – Information Technology – Systems & Network Communications Analyst – 04/29/13 
– General Fund – Replacing Tyler Solberg 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

7. Christine J. Duarte – Sheriff’s Office – From Detention Officer (Sgt.) – To Detention Officer (Lt.) – 
04/29/13 – General Fund 

8. Jillian R. Velarde – From Globe Regional Justice Court – To Clerk of the Superior Court – From Justice 
Court Clerk Associate – To Court Clerk – 05/06/13 – General Fund 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

9. Amber Campbell – School Superintendent – Accounting Clerk – 04/01/13 – General Fund 
10. Dustin Hawkins – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 04/12/13 – General Fund 
11. Victoria Sanchez – School Superintendent – Administrative Assistant – 04/15/13 – General Fund 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

12. County Attorney’s Office – Paralegal – Replaces vacant Detective position 
13. County Attorney’s Office – Paralegal Sr. – Replaces vacant Legal Secretary Lead position and vacant 

Legal Secretary Sr. position 
14. Health Services – Accounting Clerk – Replaces vacant Community Health Assistant position 
15. Health Services – Community Health Assistant Sr. – Grant Funded position 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
APRIL 30, 2013 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Manuel Casillas – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 04/17/13 – General Fund/Constituent 
Services District II Fund – DOH 04/15/13 – Termination 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

2. Kristen Sharifi – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy Attorney Sr. – 05/06/13 – General Fund – 
Replacing Raymond Geiser 

3. Lauren Ramirez – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy Attorney – 05/06/13 – General Fund – Replacing 
Wendy McHood 

4. James I. Mitchell – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy Attorney Sr. – 05/06/13 – Drug Prosecution 
Grant Fund – Replacing Erin E. Maupin 

5. Paul D. Miller – County Attorney’s Office – Paralegal Sr. – 05/01/13 – Attorney’s Justice Enhancement 
Fund – Replacing Barbara Shepherd & Brenda VanHaren 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

6. Brian Tacket – Community Services – Housing Rehabilitation Specialist – 05/09/13 – Various Funds 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

7. Jerry Moore – Public Works – From Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – To Road 
Maintenance/Equipment Operator Sr. – 05/06/13 – Public Works Fund 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

8. Randy A. Tober – Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Worker – 05/19/13 – Recycling and Landfill 
Management Fund 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

9. Health Services – Worksite Wellness Coordinator – Position Vacated by Joshua Beck 
10. Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate – Position Vacated by Jillian Velarde 
11. Globe Regional Justice Court – Temporary Justice Court Clerk Associate 



   

ARF-1807     Consent Agenda Item      4- P             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/07/2013  

Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for
Weeks Ending 3-29-13 and 4-05-13

Submitted For: Linda V.
Eastlick

Submitted By: Dana Sgroi, Contracts Support
Specialist, Finance Department

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending
3-29-13 and 4-05-13

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved by the
County Manager for the weeks of March 25, 2013, to March 29, 2013; and April 1,
2013, to April 5, 2013.

Attachments
County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 3-29-13 and
4-05-13
Service Agreement No. 032613-2 with Mountain Retreat Builders
Service Agreement No 031913 with Earthquest Plumbing
Lease Agreement No. 030513-1 with Empowerment Systems Inc.
Amendment No. 2 to Contract 070712 with Burden Electric
Service Agreement No. 022013-3 with Mundy Plumbing
Amendment 1 to Service Agreement No. 011513-2 with Pointe Companies, Inc.
Amendment 1 to Service Agreement No. 011513-4 with Pointe Companies, Inc.
Professional Services Agreement 021913 with Summit Healthcare
Service Agreement No. 040113 with Earthquest Plumbing, Inc.
Service Agreement No. 022213-1 with Stanley Security Solutions
Service Agreement No. 032913 with Earthquest Plumbing



Page 1 of 2 

 

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000  
 
March 25, 2013, to March 29, 2013 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
032613-2 

Mountain Retreat 
Builders 

 
 

 
Service Agreement No. 032613-2 
with Mountain Retreat Builders 

 
 

 
$10,576.40 

 
03-27-13 to 05-26-

13 

 
03-27-13 

 
Expires  

 
Replace existing cooling & heating system, replace 
existing non-insulated duct system, reduce 
infiltration by 50%, reduce duct leakage by 300 
cfm, fix code violations with existing water heater. 
 

 
031913 

Earthquest Plumbing  
 

 
Service Agreement No. 031913 

with Earthquest Plumbing  
 

 
$1,800.00 

 
03-27-13 to 04-26-

13 

 
03-27-13 

 
Expires  

 
Re-pipe sewer main from building to existing 
system at a residence in Midland City/Central 
Heights. 
 

 
030513-1 

Empowerment Systems, 
Inc.  

 

 
Lease Agreement No. 030513-1 
with Empowerment Systems, 

Inc. 

 
Not to Exceed 

$6,000.00 

 
03-01-13 to 02-28-

14 

 
03-27-13 

 
Option to renew 

for two  
additional two 
year periods  

 

 
Provide office space in Apache Junction, AZ for 
REPAC representatives. 
 

 
070712 

Burden Electric 
 

 
Amendment No. 2 to Contract 
070712 with Burden Electric  

 
 

 
- 

 
- 

 
03-27-13 

 
- 
 

 
This Amendment provides clarification to the 
scope of work contracted with Burden Electric  on 
Contract 070712-Electrical Service Upgrade 
Payson Sheriff’s Office. 

 
022013-3 

Mundy Company 
Plumbing 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 022013-3 

with Mundy Company 
Plumbing, Inc. 

 

 
$2,000.00 

 
03-27-13 to 05-26-

13 

 
03-27-13 

 
Expires 

 
Install concrete slab and steel enclosure for new 
40 gallon water heater outside of a residence in 
Globe, AZ. 
 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

April 01, 2013, to April 05, 2013  

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
011513-2 

Pointe Companies, Inc.  
 

 
Amendment No. 1 to Service 

Agreement No. 011513-2 
Weatherization Project No. 

HH#5924 
 

 
$4,520.20 

 
01-23-13 to 03-22-

13 

 
04-03-13 

 
Expires 

 

 
Provide and install additional framing for support 
of new roof that was in original scope of work in 
Service Agreement No. 011513-2. 
 

 
011513-4 

Pointe Companies, Inc.  
 

 
Amendment No. 1 to Service 

Agreement No. 011513-4 
Weatherization Project No. 

HH#4398 
 

 
$2,056.47 

 
01-23-13 to 03-22-

13 

 
04-03-13 

 
Expires 

 

 
Provide and install exterior door. Includes new 
residential steel door, framing and painting of the 
mobile home to match the new paint for the new 
framing. 
 

 
021913 

Summit Healthcare 
Association  

 

 
Professional Services 

Agreement No. 021913 with 
Summit Healthcare 

 

 
$20,000.00 

 
10-01-12 to 06-30-

13 

 
04-03-13 

 
Expires 

 

 
As a requirement of the First Things First Grant, 
Gila County is required to provide training and 
technical assistance to Gila County Healthy Steps 
staff for the provision of the Healthy Steps model. 
Summit Healthcare will provide someone trained 
specifically in that area to provide training and 
technical assistance to our staff. 
 

 
040113 

Earthquest Plumbing, 
Inc. 

 

 
Service Agreement No 040113 
with Earthquest Plumbing, Inc. 

 

 
$2,423.60 

 
04-03-13 to 05-17-

13 

 
04-03-13 

 
Expires 

 

 
The sewer lines at the Animal Shelter keep 
backing up about every four months and need to 
be replaced. 
 

 
022213-1 

Stanley Security 
Solutions 

 

 
Service Agreement No 022213-1 

with Stanley Security Solutions 

 
$2,588.06 

 
01-01-13 to 12-31-

14 

 
04-03-13 

 
Expires 

 

 
Software & support agreement for all Access 
Control Systems in Gila County. 
 

 
032913 

Earthquest Plumbing, 
Inc. 

 

 
Service Agreement No 032913 

with Earthquest Plumbing, Inc. 

 
$3,500.00 

 
04-03-13 to 04-02-

14 

 
04-03-13 

 
Option to renew 

for two  
additional two 
year periods  

 

 
The Utility Repair and Replacement Program 
(URRD) was established to provide assistance to 
low income individuals in crisis situations, to 
make need repairs and/or replacements to 
existing utility related appliances or systems. This 
contract will ensure that Gila County has a 
contractor in place to react quickly to our client’s 
emergency needs. 
 

 



































































Amendment No. 1/Contract 011513-4/Weatherization Project No. HH#4398/Pointe Companies, Inc. Page 1of 1 
 

 

 

 

 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 

The following amendments are hereby incorporated into the contract 

documents for the below stated project: 

  
GILA COUNTY CONTRACT NO. 011513-4 

WEATHERIZATION PROJECT NO. HH#4398 
 

POINTE COMPANIES, INC. 
 
Effective January 23, 2013, Gila County and Pointe Companies, Inc. entered into a contract whereby 
Pointe Companies, Inc. agreed to provide all materials, labor, construction equipment and services 
required for performing all work for Weatherization Project No. HH#4398, at 6231 Woodward Street 
in Globe, Arizona. 
 

The contract was issued for a flat fee bid of $20,209.02. Amendment No. 1 is being issued to address 
an issued which has caused a Change in Conditions, between the time the original scope of work was 
given and the time the contract was awarded and the work begun. One of the exterior doors to the 
mobile home needs to be replaced. Point Companies, Inc. has requested additional funds to replace 
the broken down existing aluminum door with a residential steel door. The door replacement will 
require framing for a proper fit. The outside of the mobile home will need to be painted to match the 
new paint for the new framing. The total cost for this additional work is Two Thousand, Fifty-six and 
forty-seven cents ($2,056.47). Consequently, the contract is amended to increase the flat fee bid by 
$2,056.47 to $22,265.49. 
 
All other terms and conditions of the original agreement shall remain in full force and affect during 
the term of the contract. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this amendment, each which shall include 
original signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by 
the parties hereinabove named, on this _______________ day of ________________________, 2013. 
 
OWNER: 
 
GILA COUNTY: 
 
_________________________________________________________                            
Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager 
 

 
 
 
 

POINTE COMPANIES, INC. 
 
 
______________________________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 
 

______________________________________________________ 
Print Name 
 

 
  
 
























































	Agenda
	Item2.A.  April 2013 _Spotlight on Employees_ Program
	Item2.B.  Gila Community College FY 2013-2014 Budget Request
	ATT.Gila Community College Presentation for 5-7-13
	Gila Community College
	Gila Community College
	Gila Community College
	Gila Community College
	Programs
	Programs
	GCC Partners
	GCC Partners
	GCC Partners
	GCC Partners
	GCC Partners
	GCC Partners
	2012 Graduates
	Slide Number 14

	Item2.C.  U of A, Gila County Cooperative Extension Office Annual Report and FY 2013-2014 Budget Request
	ATT.Gila Co Coop Ext Budget Request to BOS 2013
	Item3.A.  Temporary Adjustment to Fee Schedule for Wastewater Certification Classes 
	Item3.B.  Funding Agreement No. 309-13 with Arizona Department of Housing
	ATT.Funding Agreement No. 309-13 ADOH
	ATT.Environmental Review Contract No. 309-13 ADOH
	ATT.Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation ADOH
	ATT.Environmental Review Checklist
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item3.C.  Resolution No. 13-05-01 RE_  U.S. 60 Silver King & Superior Street Widening in ADOT's 2014-2018 5-Year Transportation Facilities Construction Program
	ATT.Resolution No. 13-05-01
	Item3.D.  Request to Work with ADOT on ADOT's Lion Springs Project Re Grant Application Cash Match Requirement
	ATT.ARS _28-6392
	ATT.Lion Springs Presentation
	Item3.E.  Annual Yearling Auction_Sale Request for Equipment Assistance on May 15, 2013
	Item3.F.  Environmental Systems Research Institute Small Government Term Enterprise License Agreement
	ATT.Quotation _20424029 Environmental Systems Research Institute
	ATT.Attachment A
	ATT.Sole Source Letter from Environmental Systems Research Institute
	Item3.G.  Request to Award Bid No.110812-1 Re-Bid for Chips and ABC for the Copper Region
	ATT.Bidder's List
	ATT.Bid Results
	ATT.Contract No. 110812-1 with Cemex
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Item3.H.  Request to Award Bid No.110812-1 Re-Bid for Asphalt for the Copper Region
	ATT.Bidder's List
	ATT.Bid Opening Sign-in-Sheet
	ATT.Bid Results
	ATT.Contract No. 050713 with Mesa Materials
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Item3.I.  Industrial Development Authority Board of Directors Changes
	ATT.Proposed IDA BOD Membership List
	ATT.4_22_13 IDA Letter Re Mark Marcanti's BOD Resignation
	ATT.4_24_13 IDA Letter Requesting BOD Reappointments
	ATT.4_25_13 Email from IDA Re BOD Reappointments
	Item3.J.  Gila County Planning and Zoning Commission Membership Changes
	ATT.Proposed PandZ Comm. Membership List
	ATT.Letter of resignation for Ronnie McDaniel
	Item3.K.  Provide comment regarding Tonto National Forest Draft Environmental Impact Statement for Six Grazing Allotments along the Salt River
	ATT.Proposed Comment Letter SR6 DEIS-jc.pdf
	Item3.L.  County Supervisors Association 2014 Legislative Summit
	Item3.M.  Sealed Bid for Assessor's Tax Parcel No. 302-60-193
	ATT.Bid Form on Parcel No. 302-60-193
	ATT.Assessor's Info on Parcel No. 302-60-193
	ATT.Backup Info on Parcel No. 301-60-193
	Item3.N.  Sealed Bid for Assessor's Tax Parcel No. 208-11-017
	ATT.Bid Form on Parcel No. 208-11-017
	ATT.Assessor's Info on Parcel No. 208-11-017
	ATT.Backup Info on Parcel No. 208-11-017
	Item4.A.  Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. 0010-0444 with Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging, Region V
	ATT.Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council
	ATT.Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. 0010-0444
	ATT.Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 0010-0444
	ATT.Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 0010-0444
	ATT.Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council
	ATT.Original Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Item4.B.  Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-028437) with the Arizona Department of Health Services
	ATT.Amendment No. 1
	ATT.Legal Explanation
	Item4.C.  Renewal of Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. GRA-RC004-13-0556-01 with First Things First.
	ATT.Renewal Contract
	Item4.D.  Sportsman's Chalet - 3 Applications for a Temporary Extension of Patio_Premises Permit for Special Events in May, June and July 2013
	ATT.Sportsman's Chalet Temp Ext of Premises for Liquor Service Area
	Item4.E.  Rodeo Committee waiver of fees request for use of Fairgrounds exhibit hall & rodeo arena for the sponsor dinner & rodeo
	ATT.Rodeo Committee F.G. Application
	ATT.Rodeo Committee Waiver of Fees Request
	ATT.Cetificate of Insurance for Sponsor Dinner
	ATT.Certificate of Insurance for Rodeo on May 10th and 11th, 2013
	Item4.F.  2013 Payson Rodeo Committee Chili Cook-Off-Request to Use Payson County Parking Lot
	Item4.G.  Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Board Member Resignation and New Appointment
	ATT.Supplemental Information for RTDWID Board
	Item4.H.  Public Safety Personnel Retirement System Local Board Membership Changes
	ATT.PSPRS Local Board Membership List
	ATT.PSPRS 2-15-13 Minutes
	ATT.Oath of Office for Karl Schupert
	Item4.I.  Appointment of Members to Arizona Counties Insurance Pool's Board of Trustees
	ATT.Proposed Appointments to ACIP's Board of Trustees
	Item4.J.  Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for March 2013
	ATT.Globe Regional Justice Court report for 03_13
	Item4.K.  Recorder's Office Monthly Report for March 2013
	ATT.Recorder's March 2013 Monthly Report
	Item4.L.  Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2013
	Item4.M.  Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for March 2013
	ATT.Clerk's Report March 2013
	Item4.N.  April 16, 2013, BOS Meeting Minutes
	ATT.04-16-13 BOS Meeting Minutes
	Item4.O.  Human Resources reports for the weeks of April 2, 2013, April 9, 2013, April 16, 2013, April 23, 2013 and April 30, 2013.
	ATT.April Human Resources Summary Report
	ATT.04_02_13 Human Resources Report
	ATT.04_09_13 Human Resources Report
	ATT.04_16_13 Human Resources Report
	ATT.04_23_13 Human Resources Report
	ATT.04_30_13 Human Resources Report
	Item4.P.  Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 3-29-13 and 4-05-13
	ATT.County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 3-29-13 and 4-05-13
	ATT.Amendment 1 to Service Agreement No. 011513-4 with Pointe Companies, Inc.

